

RESOLUTION No. 17-031

OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF NEVADA

REVISE THE REGIONAL TRAFFIC MITIGATION FEE PROGRAM

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution 01-71, adopting the Regional Traffic Mitigation Fee (RTMF) program as recommended by the Nevada County Transportation Commission (NCTC); and

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors adopted revisions to the RTMF through Resolutions 03-460 and 08-337; and

WHEREAS, for the fifth fiscal year following the first deposit into the account or fund, and every five years thereafter, the local agency shall make all of the following findings with respect to that portion of the account or fund remaining unexpended, whether committed or uncommitted pursuant to Government Code Section 66001 (d)(1):

- a) the purpose of RTMF fees are to offset or mitigate impacts to regional roads resulting from local development.
- b) the attached RTMF Nexus Study Report demonstrates a reasonable relationship between the fee and the purpose for which it is charged.
- c) the Study also identifies all sources and amounts of funding anticipated to complete financing for incomplete improvements.
- d) the Study and the Nevada County Transportation Commission identifies the approximate dates on which the funding is expected to be deposited into the appropriate account or fund; and

WHEREAS, the revised RTMF was based on updated land use forecasts and recent traffic modeling; and

WHEREAS, based on the new list of projects and updated land use forecasts, the proposed RTMF fees have decreased; and

WHEREAS, the NCTC adopted the RTMF 2016 Nexus Study Update Final Report (Exhibit B) on September 21, 2016, in compliance with the provisions of the Mitigation Fee Act, Government Code 66000 et seq; and

WHEREAS, an Administrative Plan (Exhibit C), has been prepared to facilitate the uniform application of fees by all participating jurisdictions; and

WHEREAS, Government Code Sections 66004 and 66018(a) require that Development Fees be adopted in a public hearing; and

WHEREAS, notice was given, a public hearing held on January 10, 2017, and the Nevada County Board of Supervisors accepted the studies and revised fee schedule; and

WHEREAS, the Nevada County RTMF will be reviewed annually for necessary adjustments for the effects of inflation on the fee amounts; and

WHEREAS, the RTMF Fee schedule shall be adjusted annually each year based upon the Engineering News Record Construction Cost Index for the twelve (12) month period ending December of the prior year; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the Nevada County Board of Supervisors:

- 1. Approve the revised RTMF Fee Schedule as shown on the attached Exhibit A and calculated in the RTMF 2016 Nexus Study Report and Administrative Plan as shown in Exhibits B and C.
- 2. Adopt the revision of the RTMF Traffic Impact Fee Zone Map as shown on the attached Exhibit D.
- 3. This Resolution shall become effective and operative March 11, 2017, which is 60 days form the date of its adoption, pursuant to Government Code Section 66017(a).

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Supervisors of the County of Nevada at a regular meeting of said Board, held on the <u>10th</u> day of <u>January</u>, <u>2017</u>, by the following vote of said Board:

Ayes: Noes:	Supervisors Heidi Hall, Edward Scofield, Dan Miller, Hank Weston and Richard Anderson. None.
Absent:	None.
Abstain:	None.

ATTEST:

JULIE PATTERSON HUNTER Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Hank Weston, Chair

1/10/2017 cc: DPW*

EXHIBIT A – PROPOSED RTMF FEES

District	þ	TMF	R	TMF	Com	bined	% Change for	
	Current	Proposed	Current	Proposed	Current	Proposed	Comhined Ease	Unit
Residential	a and an and a second of							
Western Nevada County	\$163	\$180	\$439	\$396	\$602	\$576	4%	Daily Trine
Eastern Nevada County -							Trancfor to	Dark Law
near Truckee	105,1¢	N/A	ጽ	ጽ	\$1,357	N/A	Truckee's Program	Trins
Eastern Nevada County - not							2	24
near Truckee	5414	081¢	ጽ	ጽ	\$143	\$180	26%	Daily Trins
Non-Residential								odu Gun
Western Nevada County	\$40	\$72	\$110	\$70	\$150	\$142	-6%	Daily Trins
Eastern Nevada County -			A.S				Trancfer to	Doak Hour
near Truckee	/.CE,I.¢	A/N	8	ጽ	\$1,357	N/A	Truckee's Program	Trips
Eastern Nevada County - not								
near Truckee	\$ 1 43	\$72	8	ጽ	\$143	\$72	-50%	Daily Trips
								The second secon

Exhibit B

Regional Transportation Mitigation Fee 2016 Nexus Study Update

Final Report

Prepared for:



Prepared by:



2150 River Plaza Drive Sacramento, CA 95833

August 2016

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



Executive Summary

The Mitigation Fee Act requires that mitigation fees be periodically updated. This is to ensure that the assumptions regarding future growth, the need for projects, their costs, etc. continue to provide a reasonable nexus between the impacts of new development and the fees charged. This report describes the methodology used in updating the nexus, the resulting recommended fee structure, and the revised forecast for RTMF program revenues based on the new growth assumptions and recommended fees.

Since the previous RTMF nexus study was prepared (2007-to-2008) the Great Recession caused a prolonged slump in the economy with the real estate sector being particularly hard hit. New forecasts for future development incorporate both a lower existing base of households and employment and lower future growth rates. These factors have resulted in lower reduced forecasts for future traffic congestion and a reduced need for roadway capacity improvements. However, it also means that the cost of projects will be spread over fewer new units. A final factor in the mix is the fact that Nevada County has been fortunate to receive more state funding than was foreseen in the original nexus study. This combination of factors reduces the amount that needs to be and can be collected through the RTMF to mitigate the future regional transportation impacts of new development. Exhibit ES-1 shows the recommended revised fee structure, which takes the factors described above into account.

Typical Use	Unit	Current Fee	Proposed Fee	% Change
Residential				
Single Family House	Dwelling Unit	\$4,201	\$3,770	-10%
Multi Family Housing	Dwelling Unit	\$2,950	\$2,610	-12%
Mobile Home in Park	Dwelling Unit	\$2,950	\$1,976	-33%
Senior Housing	Dwelling Unit	\$1,528	\$1,410	-8%
Non-Residential				
Office	Thousand Sq. ft.	\$1,330	\$842	-37%
Industrial	Thousand Sq. ft.	\$546	\$372	-32%
Warehouse	Thousand Sq. ft.	\$546	\$249	-54%
Retail/Service - Low	Thousand Sq. ft.	\$3,102	\$1,670	-46%
Retail/Service - Medium	Thousand Sq. ft.	\$5,191	\$3,568	-31%
Retail/Service - High	Thousand Sq. ft.	\$13,987	\$6,327	-55%
Lodging	Room	\$710	\$451	-36%
Public & Quasi-Public	Thousand Sq. ft.	Exempt	Exempt	N/A
School K-8th Grade	Student	Exempt	Exempt	N/A
School 9-12th Grade	Student	Exempt	Exempt	N/A
Public College	Student	Exempt	Exempt	N/A

Exhibit ES-1: Current and Recommended RTMF Fees

The recommendation includes a small decrease in fees for most residential units, while non-residential development would have larger reductions. The reduction is greater for non-residential development due to the fact that the proposed fees take differences in trip lengths into account in contrast to previous studies, which treated all trips equally.

If this fee schedule is adopted, NCTC will continue to have residential fees in the mid-range of foothill counties while non-residential fees will be lower than peer counties. If the forecasts for future residential and non-residential development prove correct, then total revenues from the RTMF over the next twenty years will be approximately \$22M which will provide approximately 12% of the total cost of the projects on the updated CIP. The remaining 88% of project costs are attributable to existing deficiencies and by law must be covered by some source other than impact fees.



Table of Contents

1.0	INTRO	DUCTION1
	1.1	Background to the Nexus Study1
	1.2	Program Experience to Date
2.0	UPDAT	TES OF KEY INPUTS4
	2.1	Land Use Categories4
		2.1.1 Land Use Categories in the RTMF, LTMF, and TIF Programs5
		2.1.2 Recommended Land Use Categories
	2.2	Trip Generation Rates
	2.3	Growth Forecasts
	2.4	Funding from Other Sources15
	2.5	Updating Project Costs
3.0	UPDAT	ED FEE CALCULATION
	3.1	Overview of the Fee Computation Methodology18
	3.2	Identification of Existing and Future Deficiencies
	3.3	Determining the Percent of Project Need Attributable to New Development
	3.4	Determining the Amount Potentially Collectable Through the RTMF24
	3.5	Residential and Non-Residential Shares of Traffic Impacts
	3.6	Determining the Total Number of Trips and the Fee Per Trip
	3.7	Recommended Fee by Land Use Category
	3.8	Revenues Raised by the RTMF Program
	3.9	Results in Terms of Project Funding
4.0	MITIG	ATION FEE ACT FINDINGS
	4.1	Purpose of the Fee
	4.2	Use of Fee Revenues
	4.3	Use/Type-of-Development Relationship
	4.4	Need/Type-of-Development Relationship
	4.5	Proportionality Relationship



List of Exhibits



1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background to the Nexus Study

The western Nevada County Regional Transportation Mitigation Free (RTMF) program was established in 2001 through a partnership of Nevada County, Nevada City, Grass Valley, and the Nevada County Transportation Commission (NCTC). The program provides a mechanism for new development to pay its fair share towards the cost of construction of the regional system of roads, streets, and highways needed to accommodate growth in western Nevada County.

The RTMF program operates pursuant to the Mitigation Fee Act, also known as California Assembly Bill 1600 (AB 1600) or California Government Code Sections 66000 et seq., which governs impact fees in California. The Mitigation Fee Act requires that all local agencies in California, including cities, counties, and special districts follow some basic principles when instituting impact fees as a condition of new development. Agencies must:

- 1) Identify the purpose of the fee. (Government Code Section 66001(a)(1))
- 2) Identify the use to which the fee is to be put. (Government Code Section 66001(a)(2))
- 3) Determine that there is a reasonable relationship between the fee's use and the type of development on which the fee is to be imposed. (Government Code Section 66001(a)(3))
- Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between the need for the public facility and the type of development project on which the fee is to be imposed. (Government Code Section 66001(a)(4))
- 5) Discuss how there is a reasonable relationship between the amount of the fee and the cost of the public facility or portion of the public facility attributable to the development on which the fee is to be imposed. (Government Code Section 66001(b))

These principles closely emulate two landmark U.S. Supreme Court rulings that each provide guidance on the application of impact fees. The first case, *Nollan v. California Coastal Commission* (1987) 107 S.Ct. 3141, established that local governments are not prohibited from imposing impact fees or dedications as conditions of project approval provided the local government establishes the existence of a "nexus" or link between the exaction and the state interest being advanced by that exaction. The Nollan ruling clarifies that once the adverse impacts of development have been quantified, the local government must then document the relationship between the project and the need for the conditions that mitigate those impacts. The ruling further clarifies that an exaction may be imposed on a development even if the development project itself will not benefit, provided the exaction is necessitated by the project's impacts on identifiable public resources.

The second case, *Dolan v. City of Tigard* (1994) 114 S.Ct. 2309, held that in addition to the Nollan standard of an essential nexus, there must be a "rough proportionality" between proposed exactions and the project impacts that the exactions are intended to allay. As part of the Dolan ruling, the U.S. Supreme Court advised that "a term such as 'rough proportionality' best encapsulates what we hold to be the requirements of the Fifth Amendment. No precise mathematical calculation is required, but the city (or other local government) must make some sort of individualized determination that the required dedication is related both in nature and extent to the impact of the proposed development."

1.0 - INTRODUCTION



The combined effect of both rulings is the requirement that public exactions must be carefully documented and supported. This requirement is reiterated by the provisions of the Mitigation Fee Act and subsequent rulings in the California Supreme Court (*Ehrlich v. City of Culver City* (1996) 12 C4th 854) and the California Court of Appeals (*Loyola Marymount University v. Los Angeles Unified School District* 45 (1996) Cal.App.4th 1256).

This Nexus Study report is intended to satisfy the requirements of the State of California Mitigation Fee Act. Specifically, this Nexus Study report will outline the purpose and use of the RTMF, the relationship between new development and impacts on the transportation system, the estimated cost to complete necessary improvements to the regional street system within western Nevada County, and the 'rough proportionality' or 'fair-share' fee for differing development types.

1.2 Program Experience to Date

From its inception in fiscal year 2000/2001 until the end of fiscal year 2013/2014 a total of \$3.6M was collected in RTMF fees. Fifty-two percent of this amount came from developments in unincorporated Nevada County, 45% from developments in Grass Valley, and 3% from developments in Nevada City (see Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 2).

Fiscal Year	Nevada County	City of Grass Valley	City of Nevada City	Total
FY 2000/01	\$0	\$1,897	\$0	\$1,897
FY 2001/02	\$75,183	\$64,383	\$0	\$139,565
FY 2002/03	\$108,576	\$120,764	\$8,664	\$238,004
FY 2003/04	\$94,530	\$156,887	\$22,468	\$273,885
FY 2004/05	\$72,575	\$131,114	\$28,028	\$231,717
FY 2005/06	\$138,480	\$234,399	\$7,987	\$380,866
FY 2006/07	\$63,253	\$112,896	\$1,890	\$178,039
FY 2007/08	\$44,445	\$156,834	\$6,308	\$207,587
FY 2008/09	\$111,937	\$238,031	\$2,499	\$352,466
FY 2009/10	\$176,458	\$84,370	\$0	\$260,828
FY 2010/11	\$222,750	\$8,459	\$3,928	\$235,138
FY 2011/12	\$170,155	\$15,178	\$0	\$185,333
FY 2012/13	\$168,255	\$48,771	\$4,201	\$221,228
FY 2013/14	\$474,393	\$284,987	\$7,482	\$766,863
Total	\$1,920,990	\$1,658,970	\$93,456	\$3,673,416
	52%	45%	3%	100%

Exhibit 1: RTMF Revenues, 2000 to 2014





Exhibit 2: RTMF Revenues by Year and Jurisdiction

Since the previous nexus study revenues have averaged \$337,000/year, which is only 19% of the amount anticipated in the study (\$1.7M/year). This was due to the suppressive effect of the Great Recession on real estate development. On the other hand, NCTC had great success in securing other funds for projects on the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) including a \$19M grant for the Dorsey Drive Interchange which more than made up for the less-than-expected RTMF revenues.

The RTMF has used the revenues it has collected to fund a variety of improvement projects. These are listed in Exhibit 3 below. Exhibit 3 shows that the RTMF program is important not just for the funding it provides but also because the RTMF dollars are used as local matching funds to leverage funding from other sources.

Project	RTMF Funding	Funding from Other Sources	Total Funding
East Main/Idaho-Maryland Roundabout	\$1,823,000	\$777,000	\$2,600,000
Dorsey Drive Interchange	\$214,020	\$19,333,980	\$19,548,000
Brunswick/Loma Rica	\$488,790	\$536,865	\$1,025,655
NCTC Admin Annual Administration Charges	\$8,950	\$0	\$8,950
RTMF Update Charges	\$83,538	\$0	\$83,538
T-A-I D-14	\$2,618,298	\$20,647,845	\$23,266,143
1 otal Pala	11%	89%	100%

Exhibit 3: Projects that have Received RTMF Funds

2.0 - UPDATES OF KEY INPUTS



2.0 UPDATES OF KEY INPUTS

2.1 Land Use Categories

The Mitigation Fee Act requires that any fee charged has a "reasonable relationship" to the impact being generated by the new development project against which the fee is assessed. An important factor in determining "reasonableness" is that projects generating different amounts of traffic are charged different fee levels. This is typically done by classifying projects into land use types and charging different fee levels for each category based on the trip generating characteristics of each type of land use and on the size of the project.

There is no standard system of land use categories for fee programs in California. Each jurisdiction has discretion to determine their own categories subject to the proviso that it results in a reasonable relationship between the development projects impact and the fee charged. An ideal system of land use categories would have the following characteristics:

- <u>Based on Trip Generation Characteristics</u>: A system should distinguish between development types that generate a lot of traffic (e.g. fast-food restaurants) and those that generate little traffic (furniture stores). A system that lumps them together into a single category (retail) and charges the same fee per square foot for each would be more vulnerable to legal challenge.
- Evidence-Based: A system should be based on actual evidence of impacts, which usually takes the form of survey data from a reputable source. The Institute of Transportation Engineers' (ITE's) *Trip Generation Manual* is the most widely-used reference for trip generation data in the U.S. and was used in the current study. An essential part of being data-driven is to measure the size of the development in units that are meaningfully related to trip generation and readily quantifiable as the basis for calculating the fee obligation. Residential developments are typically measured in terms of dwelling unit. For most categories of non-residential development the appropriate unit of measurement is thousands of square feet of floor space (TSF). However, there are some uses where other units are more appropriate, such as "pumps" for gas stations and "rooms" for hotels.
- <u>Unambiguous</u>: Each land use category should be defined with sufficient clarity that the developer, the agency staff at the counter, and if necessary a court, can easily determine whether or not a proposed development falls within the category. Overlaps between categories should be avoided.
- <u>Exhaustive</u>: There should be a category to cover every potential project type. Otherwise if a proposal does not fall neatly into an existing category, the developer could challenge whichever category they are put into, or even claim that if no fee has been adopted for their particular development type then no fee applies. Since it is not always possible to anticipate projects that may occur years into the future it is advisable to have a catch-all category such as "Other Non-Residential" to capture odd cases. The other way to deal with this is to offer the option to base the fee on a project-specific traffic study rather than using an existing category.
- <u>Easy to Use</u>: The system should be simple enough that in the vast majority of cases agency staff can readily compute the fee obligation in a few minutes. It should also be easy for policy-makers and developers to understand how the fee obligation is being calculated, estimate the fee



obligation themselves, and to know how the fees in their program compare with fees in other jurisdictions.

The current RTMF land use categories are arguably weak on several of the factors listed above, as are the systems used by Nevada County and Grass Valley. In each case, though, the system can be strengthened without deviating far from the current system.

2.1.1 Land Use Categories in the RTMF, LTMF, and TIF Programs

As part of the nexus update, the land use categories used in the RTMF program were compared to those in Grass Valley's Transportation Impact Fee (TIF) and Nevada County's Local Traffic Mitigation Fee. We found that the three fee programs use somewhat different land use categories (see Exhibit 4 below¹).

Land Use Category	RTMF	LTMF	TIF
RESIDENTIAL			
Single Family House	1	\checkmark	~
Multi Family	1	1	\checkmark
Mobile Home in Park		\checkmark	\checkmark
Senior Residential	\checkmark	~	\checkmark
NONRESIDENTIAL			
Retail - Low	1	~	~
Retail - Medium	1	~	\checkmark
Retail - High	1	\checkmark	\checkmark
Office		\checkmark	\checkmark
Office/Service	1		
Office - Medical		1	
Industrial	1	1	
Light Industrial			~

Exhibit 4: Comparison of Current Land Use Categories in Western Nevada County

The strength of all three systems is that they are simple enough to be easily administered yet complex enough to reflect meaningful differences in trip generating characteristics between, say, low-generating retail and high-generating retail or between senior housing and conventional housing. There are some weaknesses, though:

 The LTMF does not have a category for "Service" (banks, hair salons, etc.). The RTMF has one, but the category is very broad and encompasses both high-generating uses (banks with ATMs) with low-generating uses (general office). The TIF does not mention services in its land use categories, but includes as secondary uses within different retail categories (see *Grass Valley Transportation Impact Fee Program Nexus Study*, Table 9).

¹ Source: Nevada County Resolution No. 08-336 Exhibit H, RTMF Administrative Plan Figure 1A, TIF Nexus 2008 Study Table 2.



- Each program has at least one category not used by either of the other two, so a proposed development subject to two fees may find itself in two different categories. While there is no legal necessity for the systems to match up, the fact that a project might be listed in a low-fee category in the RTMF (say, Office/Service) while the same project might be put into a high-fee category for the LTMF (Office-Medical) might raise questions concerning the "reasonable relationship".
- The TIF and RTMF (and by extension the LTMF) programs use the same retail category names ("Retail – Low", "Retail – Medium", etc.) to mean different things. The RTMF explicitly categorized retail uses by means of their trip-gen rate with, for example, "Retail – Low" being all retail uses with a trip-gen rate below 35 VT/TSF/Day. The TIF nexus study did not explicitly state how retail uses were categorized, but it appears that they also used thresholds but set at a different level (apparently around 55 VT/TSF/Day) would be "Retail – Low" for TIF but "Retail - Medium" for RTMF. Again, while there is no legal necessity for the systems to match up, the fact that a project might be listed in a low-fee category in the TIF while the same project might be put into a highfee category for the RTMF might raise questions concerning the "reasonable relationship".
- Public sector uses (schools, government offices, etc.) and quasi-public sector uses (churches, utilities, etc.) do not seem to be mentioned in the LTMF program. The TIF program explicitly exempts public facilities from fees but does not seem to mention quasi-public facilities or private facilities serving public functions such as private schools. The RTMF program does not mention public uses but allows for exemptions in other fee programs to be carry over to the RTMF.
- The RTMF explicitly allows for project-specific trip generation studies for proposals that do not fit
 into the standard categories, but Grass Valley does not appear to have adopted a policy allowing
 this. The LTMF sets fees by trip rather than by square foot of floor space and so can easily
 accommodate project-specific studies.

2.1.2 Recommended Land Use Categories

Based on the ideal characteristics of a category system listed in the first section above and the issues raised in the second section, we recommend that the following changes be made to improve the defensibility of the RTMF:

- The resolution adopting RTMF's updated fee structure should explicitly specify which ITE land use codes fall into each of the fee program land use categories.
- Service uses should be combined with retail uses with similar trip generation rates. Thus high, medium, and low "Retail/Service" categories would replace the existing "Retail" and "Office/Service" categories.
- A "Mobile Home in Park" category should be added to the RTMF so that its residential categories match those of the other programs in reflecting the low trip-generation characteristics of this type of building. Mobile homes on individual lots outside of mobile home parks would continue to be treated as single-family dwellings.
- A "Lodging" category should be added to the RTMF, and the other programs as well, given the importance of tourism to the area. Hotels are not easily incorporated into other categories because their trip generate rates are typically measured in rooms instead of TSF.



- A "warehouse" category should be added to the RTMF, and the other programs as well, given that warehouses are growing as a share of the real estate market and their trip generation characteristics as significantly different from industrial developments (the category they are currently lumped into).
- The RTMF should explicitly state its policy towards public sector development. Since most public
 sector buildings are exempt from local fees anyway the simplest solution would be to create a
 "Public Sector" category for the purposes of accounting for their share of the fee program and
 explicitly stating these uses are "exempt" in the respective fee ordinances.
- The RTMF should have an "Other Non-Residential" category to cover land use types not found in the standard categories. This would not have a trip generation rate defined for it (the wide variety of potential projects would make an average both difficult to compute and not very meaningful). Instead the rate would read, "The trip generation for any project of a type not found in these categories shall be computed using the ITE daily trip-generation rate for their land use type or, at the discretion of agency staff, through a separate traffic study."

Exhibit 5 compares the recommended land use categories to the ones currently in use in the fee programs.

Land Use Category	RTMF	LTMF	TIF	Recommended
RESIDENTIAL				
Single Family House	✓	\checkmark	\checkmark	✓
Multi Family	1	\checkmark	\checkmark	✓
Mobile Home in Park		\checkmark	\checkmark	1
Senior Residential	~	\checkmark	\checkmark	✓
NONRESIDENTIAL				
Retail - Low	1	\checkmark	\checkmark	
Retail - Medium	✓	\checkmark	\checkmark	
Retail - High	✓	\checkmark	✓	
Retail/Service - Low				×
Retail/Service - Medium				1
Retail/Service - High				✓
Office		\checkmark	\checkmark	1
Office/Service	\checkmark			
Office - Medical		~		
Industrial	\checkmark	~		1
Light Industrial			\checkmark	
Warehouse				✓
Public Sector				1
Lodging				1
Other Non-Residential				1

Exhibit 5: Comparison of Current Land Use Categories to Recommended Categories

2.2 Trip Generation Rates

ITE's Trip Generation Manual has been updated with new survey material since the edition that was used in the previous nexus study. The trip generation rates have accordingly been updated to those of the latest (9th) edition.

Exhibit 6 shows a detailed correspondence list between the general categories show in Exhibit 5 and the ITE land use codes. It also shows the derivation of the trip generation rate used for each category from the individual rates of the sub-categories.



2.0 - UPDATES OF KEY INPUTS

Land Use Category	Unit	ITE Code	Weekday Trips per Uni
BIDENTIAL			
Single Family Detached House	Dwelling Unit	210	9.52
Multi-Family			
Apartment	Dwelling Unit	220	6.65
Low Rise Apartment	Dwelling Unit	221	6.59
Residential Condominium/Townhouse	Dwelling Unit	230	5.81
Median for Multi-Family	3		6.59
Mobile Home in Park	Dwelling Unit	240	4.99
Senior Residential			
Senior Adult Housing - Detached	Dwelling Unit	251	3.68
Senior Adult Housing - Attached	Dwelling Unit	252	3.44
Median for Senior Residential	2 Holding Offic		3.56
V-RESIDENTIAL			
Office			
General Office	TSF	710	11.03
Single Tenant Office	TSF	715	11.65
Office Park	TSF	750	11 42
Business Park	TSF	770	12 44
Clínic	TSF	630	31.45
Medical-Dentist Office	TSF	720	36.13
Median for Office	101	120	12.05
Inductrial			1
Coperal Light Industry	TOE	110	6.07
General Heavy Industry	TOF	120	1.50
Industrial Park	TOF	120	1.50
Manufacturing	TOF	140	0.03
Median for Industrial	131	140	5.33
Warehousing	TSE	150	3.56
Patel/Occilies Law	101	100	0.00
Retail/Service - Low	TOF	000	5.00
Furniture Store	ISF	890	5.06
Discount Home Furnishing Superstore	ISF	869	20.00
Tire Superstore	ISF	849	20.36
Department Store	ISF	875	22.88
The Store	ISF	848	24.87
Factory Outlet Center	ISF	823	26.59
Home Improvement Superstore	ISF	862	30.74
New Car Sales	ISF	841	32.30
Retail/Service - Medium			20.00
Discount Club	TSE	857	41.80
Shopping Center	TSE	820	41.00
Electronics Superstore	TSF	863	45.04
Building Materials and Lumber	TSE	812	45.16
Discount Superstore	TSE	813	50.75
Hardware/Paint Store	TSE	816	51 20
Arts and Crafts Store	TSE	870	ST.25
	TSE	815	57.24
Auto Parts Store	TSE	842	61 01
Specially Retail Center	TOF	040	01.91
and sense a sense of the sense		014	04.1/3

Exhibit 6: Trip-Generation Rates for Different Land Use Categories

2.0 - UPDATES OF KEY INPUTS



Land Use Category	Unit	ITE Code	Weekday Trips per Unit
Retail/Service - High			
Apparel Store	TSF	876	66.40
Nursery (Garden Center)	TSF	817	68.10
Day Care Center	TSF	565	74,06
Quality Restaurant	TSF	931	89.95
Pharmacy/Drugstore w/o Drive Through Window	TSF	880	90.06
Discount Supermarket	TSF	854	90.86
Pharmacy/Drugstore with Drive Through Window	TSF	881	96.91
Supermarket	TSF	850	102.24
High Turnover (Sit-Down) Restaurant	TSF	932	127.15
Drive-in Bank	TSF	912	148.15
Median for Retail - High			90.46
Lodging			
Hotel	Room	310	8.17
All Suites Hotel	Room	311	4.90
Business Hotel	Room	312	7.27
Motel	Room	320	5.63
Median for Lodging			6.45
Public & Quasi-Public			
Military Base	TSF	501	1.78
Library	TSF	590	56.24
Government Office Building	TSF	730	68.93
State Motor Vehicles Department	TSF	731	166.02
United States Post Office	TSF	732	108.19
Government Office Complex	TSF	733	27.92
Median for Public Sector			68.93
School K-8th Grade	Student	520 & 522	1.33
School 9th-12 Grade	Student	522 & 530	1.69
Junior/Community College	Student	540	1,23
Other Non-Residential			
All Port and Terminal Uses		000-099]	
All Recreational Uses		300-399	The trip generation for any
All Private Institutional Uses (Public Institutions are Exe	empt)	500-599	project in these categories
Convenience Market		851	shall be computed using
Convenience Market with Gasoline Pumps		853	the ITE daily trip-
Fast Food Restaurant with Drive Through		934	generation rate for their
Coffee/Donut Shop with Drive Through		937	land use type or at the
Coffee/Donut Shop Drive Through No Seating		938	discretion of agency staff.
Gasoline/Service Station		944	through a separate traffic
Gasoline/Service Station with Convenience Market		945	study
Gasoline/Service Station with Convenience Market and	Car Wash	946	,
Self-Service Car Wash		947 -	

Exhibit 6: Trip-Generation Rates for Different Land Use Categories (continued)

2.3 Growth Forecasts

Assumptions regarding future growth are critical inputs for a traffic mitigation fee since they help determine both whether roadway deficiencies will develop and how many new homes or square feet of new commercial development will contribute towards the costs of mitigations. Since the RTMF is a long-term program we must look at long-term trends to arrive forecast growth over the study horizon.

Exhibit 7 shows the number of housing starts for California for the period 1954 to 2013.



2.0 - UPDATES OF KEY INPUTS



Data Source: California Building Industry Association

Exhibit 7: Housing Starts in California by Year

The exhibit shows the unstable nature of the housing market in California, with five major "housing booms" and five "housing busts" occurring during this period. Several patterns are discernible, namely:

- The housing booms are occurring further and further apart. Five years elapsed between the
 peaks of the 1972 and 1977 booms, 9 years between the peaks of the 1977 and 1986 booms,
 and 18 years between the 1986 and 2004 booms. If this pattern continues it may be decades
 before the next peak occurs.
- The size of the booms is trending downwards. The most recent boom was the smallest of the five, being only about 2/3^{rds} the size of the previous boom.
- From the 1960's through the 1980's single-family and multi-family housing was being built in similar quantities in California. In fact, multi-family housing production exceeded single-family housing in 3 of the 4 housing booms in this period. The period from 1990 to 2005, when single-family housing was produced at more than 2½ times the pace of multi-family, appears in retrospect to have been an aberration from the historical pattern.

More recently the real estate market has been affected by the Great Recession. The Great Recession was deeper and much longer than any previous recession since WWII (see Exhibit 8) and the collapse of the real estate market was at the heart of the recession. This was, hopefully, a one-off event unlikely to recur within the time horizon of the current study (to 2035). Nevertheless, it seems unlikely that things will "go to back to normal" (i.e. to the conditions prevailing in the 1990-to-2005 period) in terms of real estate development; structural and demographic changes have occurred resulting in a new normal. Any assumptions regarding real estate development that were made based on pre-recession data therefore need to be re-examined to determine if they remain valid post-recession.



2.0 - UPDATES OF KEY INPUTS



Source: Federal Reserve Bank of Minneapolis



Scaling down from the state-wide level to the local level, data from the U.S. Census Bureau shows that in recent years the foothills counties have been growing slowly, if at all (see Exhibit 9).



Exhibit 9: Change in Foothill Counties' Populations





Post-recession population forecasts by Caltrans² suggests that only modest growth can be expected for the foreseeable future (see Exhibit 10).

Exhibit 10: Actual and Forecast Population for Nevada County

The growth forecasts used in the previous nexus study, which began in 2006, were based on data collected in the construction boom leading up to the Great Recession. The forecasts used in the current study are based on an assumed lower growth rate and therefore the 2035 population in the current forecast is lower than the 2030 forecast used in the previous study. The current and previous forecasts are compared in Exhibit 11.

² California County-Level Economic Forecast, 2014-2040, Office of State Planning, California Department of Transportation, September 2014

August 2016

2.0 - UPDATES OF KEY INPUTS



Exhibit 11: Comparison of Population Forecasts for Nevada County

The lower forecast for future population has several effects on the RTMF, most notably:

- Fewer new households means less traffic impacts and therefore less need for roadway improvements as mitigation. Some projects may no longer be needed and a smaller portion of the need will be attributable to new development.
- However, for those projects that are stilled needed, fewer new dwelling units means that each will have to pay a higher share of the cost.

These trends work in opposite directions; the first would tend to lower fees while the second would tend to raise them. The interaction of these opposing trends is discussed further in a later section of this report.

Based on the growth projections supplied by the local jurisdictions and using the land use categories described in Section 2.1.2, the growth forecast by land use type is shown in Exhibit 12.



2.0 - UPDATES OF KEY INPUTS

Land Llas Catagon		Enti	re RTMF A	rea	07
Land Use Category	/	Year	Year	Growth	70 Growth
Description	Unit	2012	2035	Growin	Growur
Residential					
Single-Family Dwelling	DU	31,352	34,676	3,324	11%
Multi-Family Dwelling	DU	2,393	4,172	1,779	74%
Mobile Home	DU	1,515	1,615	100	7%
Senior Housing	DU	1,021	1,386	365	36%
Tota	I	36,281	41,849	5,568	15%
Non-Residential					
Retail - Low	TSF	1,539	1,932	392	25%
Retail - Medium	TSF	1,231	1,545	314	25%
Retail - High	TSF	308	386	78	25%
Office	TSF	1,231	2,157	926	75%
Office-Medical	TSF	231	281	50	22%
Industrial	TSF	1,870	2,149	280	15%

Exhibit 12: Growth Forecast by Land Use Type

2.4 Funding from Other Sources

When computing the amount of an impact fee, the amount of funding available from other sources must be deducted from the project cost estimates to ensure that new development is not paying more than its fair share. State and federal funds for transportation improvements are channeled through the State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP), which is administered by the California Transportation Commission (CTC). For the purposes of this study there are two key features of the STIP; namely: 1) that the CTC allocates a share of statewide funding to Nevada County which NCTC then allocates among individual projects, subject to later review by the CTC, and 2) that STIP funding is difficult to predict and varies widely from year to year depending on the budget situation on the state level. Under these circumstances the best way to estimate future funding from the STIP is to look at the long-term average of funding from this source. This is done Exhibit 13. Based on the historical average of \$7.9M/year in STIP funding we estimate that \$158M will be available from this source over the next 20 years.

2.0 – UPDATES OF KEY INPUTS



Year	Project	STIP Funding
2002	SR 267 Truckee Bypass	\$33,500,000
2004	SR 49 Widening Bear River Bridge to Wolf/Combie Roads	\$10,400,000
2012	SR 49/La Barr Meadows Road Intersection Improvements	\$40,500,000
2014	Dorsey Drive Interchange	\$17,000,000
2015	SR 89 Mousehole - Pedestrian/Bike Path	\$6,400,000
2015	SR 49 LaBarr Project North to McKnight Widening	\$3,000,000
	Total Over 14-Year Period	\$110,800,000
	Annual Average of 14-Year Period	\$7,914,286
Αποι	Int Available Over 20 Years, Based on 14-Year Annual Average	\$158,285,714

Exhibit 13: Funding Available from Other Sources

2.5 Updating Project Costs

Page 16

The cost of road construction has varied significantly over the course of the last decade, so it is important that this be factored into the fee structure for the RTMF.

Exhibit 14 shows Caltrans' construction price index for highway projects for the period from 1900 to 2014. As can be seen in the exhibit, there was a slow and stable rise in prices throughout the 1990's and early years of the 2000's. However, in 2004 a combination of a construction boom, rising land and fuel costs, and the effect of a weakening U.S. dollar on the cost of imported construction materials, caused construction prices to rise more in a single year then they had in the previous 15 years combined; the highest single-year increase since Caltrans started the index. This was followed in 2005 by the second-highest single-year increase. The rapid increase was followed by a rapid decrease with the collapse of the housing market, which used many of the same construction inputs as Caltrans.

The Caltrans cost index is based on actual bid prices for projects done in the previous year. There is a second cost index, prepared by the Engineering News Record (ENR) that is computed based on the market prices for various major inputs to road projects (concrete, steel, aggregate, etc.). This index is less volatile than the Caltrans index because it does not include the effect of contractors' changing profit expectations in response to strong or weak market conditions. The two indices are compared in Exhibit 14.

2.0 - UPDATES OF KEY INPUTS



Exhibit 14: Caltrans' Construction Price Index, 1990-2014

NCTC policy specifies that the ENR index for California Cities is to be used as the basis for cost adjustments for the RTMF. This decision was based in part on the relative stability of the ENR index, which makes the fee program more predictable for developers compared to the highly volatile Caltrans index. Therefore, since the ENR index has risen 25% since the last nexus study, for projects where no recent cost estimates are available, the project cost estimates were increased 25% from the previous calculation.

3.0 - UPDATED FEE CALCULATION



3.0 UPDATED FEE CALCULATION

An overview of the methodology used to compute the RTMF is provided in the section below, followed by sections providing more in-depth discussion of the key components. These are followed by sections describing the resulting fees and the revenues that would be raised by the RTMF under the different sets of policy options.

3.1 Overview of the Fee Computation Methodology

The methodology used in the fee computation is outlined in Exhibit 15 below. The major steps include:

- 1) The starting point was a set of forecasts for residential and non-residential growth from NCTC, the City of Grass Valley, and Nevada County. The forecasts were described in Section 2.1.
- 2) The growth forecasts were used as inputs into the NCTC traffic model that was then used to forecast traffic volumes for 2035. Recent traffic counts were used to find current traffic volumes. The volumes were then used to determine the level of service (LOS) for each potential project site under 2015 and 2035 conditions.
- 3) Each jurisdiction sets its LOS standards through resolutions, usually as part of its General Plan.
- 4) The existing and future LOS were compared to the LOS standard to determine where deficiencies currently exist and where they may develop in the future. Potential projects were identified that would correct the deficiencies.
- 5) The outputs of Step 4 were used to determine the percentage of the need for each potential project that is attributable to new development.
- 6) The estimated cost for different projects come from a variety of sources, including engineering studies and planning-level estimates.
- 7) The project cost estimates were updated, if necessary, using the Engineering New Record construction cost index to reflect current prices. This was described in Section 2.5.
- 8) The outputs from steps 5 and 7 were used to determine the dollar cost for each project that is attributable to new development.
- 9) Next, any funding that may be available from other sources for the listed projects was identified. This was discussed in Section 2.4.
- 10) The amount of funding available from other sources was compared to the project costs to determine if it exceeded the amount attributable to existing deficiencies (i.e., not attributable to new development). If so, the surplus of other funds was used to reduce the amount needed from new development. The result was the maximum amount of funding allowable by law that could potentially be collected using the RTMF.
- 11) The NCTC traffic model was used to determine the percentage share of growth in vehicle-miles traveled (VMT) that will be associated with residential and non-residential development.



3.0 - UPDATED FEE CALCULATION



Exhibit 15: Steps in the Fee Computation

- 12) The results of Steps 10 and 11 were then combined to determine the portion of project costs that could be attributed to new residential and non-residential development.
- 13) Next, the trip generation rate was determined for each land use type. For residential land uses the unit of measurement was daily trips/dwelling unit, while for non-residential uses tripgeneration was measured in terms of daily trips/thousand square feet of space, except for schools, where the unit was daily trips/student and lodging, where daily trips/room were used.
- 14) The number of new units for each development type was then multiplied by the trip generation rate to produce the total number of new trips associated with each type of land use development.



3.0 - UPDATED FEE CALCULATION

- 15) The project funding attributable to residential and non-residential developments (from Step 12) was then divided by the expected number of new residential and non-residential trips (from Step 14) to produce the potential impact fee per trip for each type of unit.
- 16) The fee per trip from Step 15 was then multiplied by the number of trips per unit from Step 13 to compute the fee per unit.

The next sections describe several key steps in the process in more detail.

3.2 Identification of Existing and Future Deficiencies

Existing and future deficiencies were identified by comparing the existing and future LOS to the LOS standards adopted by the local jurisdictions. For unincorporated Nevada County the LOS standard is D in all locations. For Grass Valley, the General Plan calls for LOS D at most locations. However, in some locations LOS E is allowed in order to maintain the walkable character of the historic downtown area³.

Exhibit 16 shows the existing and future LOS at the project locations listed in the previous nexus study. Several additional sites were identified as potentially requiring improvement; these were added to the bottom of the table.

The previous nexus study (2008) identified 25 projects for the fee program. Of these:

- 3 have been completed and paid for
- 2 have been completed but not yet paid for
- 10 are now deemed unnecessary. These include:
 - o 1 was identified in the previous nexus study as not being needed
 - o 9 are no longer expected to be needed due to the new, lower growth expectations
- 1 has been shifted to TIF program because it is not a regional facility
- 9 are recommended to be retained going forward

In addition one new location, SR-49 at Coyote Street, was identified as having a deficiency and being eligible for inclusion in the RTMF program.

³ See City of Grass Valley Resolution 2013-33

RTMF 2016 Nexus Update Study - Final Report

3.0 - UPDATED FEE CALCULATION

Marching Interdation Stand Stand <tt>Stand <tt>Stand<</tt></tt>	wholes DI Memory uddy 0 0 0 0 uddy 2 2 3 1 1 0 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 5 6 9 6 9 6 1 1 1	Intersection	Control	Chandred				-			And and a subscription of the local division		1
1 1 557-300 65 Minute 56M-1 M M 333 6 1000-membra fielding the protout made interform the fielding the protout made interform the fielding the protout made interformation fielding the protout made interformatinte protout made intereformation fiel	4 4 0	D JN/AD CD Ramne/Doreau Dr		Stathuaru	Delay (sec/veh) or ADT	ros	Delay (sec/veh) or ADT	SOJ	Delay (sec/veh) or ADT	ros	Delay (sec/veh) or ADT	ros	Nates
1 1 2000105 5 yrul 3 yrul		LY 20142 30 Maintarinary Prist	Signal	٥	AN		AN		10.8	æ	40.4	0	Improvements identified in the previous study have already been built
3 1 2	A B	R 20/49 NB Ramps/Dorsey Dr	Signal	0	NAN		AN		13.2	a	13.D	B	Improvements identified in the previous study have already been built
3 2 2 2 7 1		R-49: South of McKnight Way		D			34,700	L	26,085	υ	27,800	0	Deficient in previous nexus study but not deficient under revised assumptions
0 1 0 0 1 0 0 1 0	4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	R-49. South of La Barr Meadows Rd (SB)		Q			000 00		11,604	u	12.050	u	
1 3 3 4 1	00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 00000 0000 00	R-49: South of La Barr Meadows Rd (NB)		a			31,200		11,604	0	12.050	0	Has 2 lanes NB and 1 lane SB, so LOS is different for the two directions of travel
0 5		R-49: South of Alta Sierra Dr (SB)		0			01 000		11,498	L	11,650	u	
2 5 5 5 5 2	4 4 5 5 6 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	R-49: South of Atta Sierra Dr (NB)		0			31, 800	-	11,498	υ	11,650	U	THES 2 LARES NE and 1 LARE SE, SO LOS IS different for the two directions of travel
3 5 5 5 5 7 5 7 5 3 0	44 5 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	R-49: South of Walf Creek		0			31,500	L	27,852	L	28,300	L	
4/b 5 Mucloyerd volues Spant D F F F F F F F F F F Duranded to a set of noundhouse Duranded to a set of noundhouse Duranded to a set of noundhouse 6 1 7 7 7 7 7 7 0 0 0 1 0	4A 5	R 49/Combie Rd	Signal	0			57.0	w	17.9	0	35.0	0	Deficient in previous nexus study but not deficient under revised assumptions.
1 1	44	IcKnight Way/SR 49 NB Ramps	Signal	٥		L		L		u.	14,8	m	Deficient in both previous and current nexus study. The design for improvement has b
dist Michigan Michigan End SSS D field		IcKnight Way/SR 49 SB Ramps	Signal	0		L		L		u.	41.5	0	changed to a set of roundabouts.
6 Nome field	4B N	IcKnight Way/Taylorville Rd	SSSC	٩	15.7	υ	33.3	0	13.3	m	14.5	00	
6 6 6 6 6 156 7 156 7 156 7 156 7 7 7 8 200 7 315 7 156 7 156 7 156 7 156 7 156 7 156 7 156 7 156 7 156 7 156 7 156 7 156 7 156 7 156 16 16 166 <th< td=""><td>2</td><td>one listed</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></th<>	2	one listed											
7:0 Now the flat Now the	6 6 N	IcCourtney Rd/SR 20 EB Ramps	SSSC	0	193,0	u.	1000,0	u.	155,8		155.4	L	
	2-6-2-	one listed											
11 11	10 7 S	R 20/49 NB Ramps/Idaho Maryland Rd	AWSC	0			>150	u.	20,6	υ	50,8	L	
12 Stradiul Statemerghamerik Hall Spanie D 52.0 D 72.0 E 25.3 C Deficient in previous naus study but not deficient under revead assume study frame and	11	Main St/Idaho Maryland Rd/SR 20/49 SB Rat	m RAB	۵									Roundabout has already been built and paid for
13.4 55 25.045 B Former/Tage Refreschiese Rudok Fance A ANSC D 51.0 6 21.5 C Lower future forecasts 13.4 2 S2.044 S B Former/Tage Refreschiese RMSC AMSC D 51.0 E 56.0 C Der future forecasts 14 N S2.044 S B Former/Tage Refreschiese RMSC AMSC D 51.0 E 56.0 C Der forecasts 16.1 N S8-0.045 Golden Center Fwy. Eennett Sto laten-Manyland D 51.0 E 56.4.00 C Der forecasts 16.2 N None Isted None Isted None Isted None Store Der forecasts Der forecast Secure Store Der forecast </td <td>12 S</td> <td>R 20/49 SB Ramps/Brunswick Rd</td> <td>Signal</td> <td>0</td> <td>52.0</td> <td>٥</td> <td>72.0</td> <td>ш</td> <td>22.6</td> <td>υ</td> <td>22.3</td> <td>U</td> <td>Deficient in previous nexus sludy but not deficient under revised assumptions.</td>	12 S	R 20/49 SB Ramps/Brunswick Rd	Signal	0	52.0	٥	72.0	ш	22.6	υ	22.3	U	Deficient in previous nexus sludy but not deficient under revised assumptions.
Units 5 SIS 2045 GR BranceRidge RUcod Flat Rd AVVIC D 510 E 552 F M A 14 2 25 7 2 24 3 7	0	R 20/49 NB Ramps/Ridge Rd/Gold Flat Rd	AWSC	۵			457.0	L	19.3	U	21.5	0	Lower future forecasts
1000000000000000000000000000000000000	8 47 8	R 20/49 SB Ramps/Ridge Rd/Gold Flat Rd	AWSC	0	51.D	ш	93.0	u.	39.7	ш	55.2		
14 84.30048 Gebeen Center Fwy. Bennett St to Idation-Maryland 0 61.735 F 34.300 C Detectent in previous enus study but not derication under resided assumption and trained assumption. 15.21 9 87.30048 Gebeen Center Fwy. Bennett St to Idation-Maryland 585C D 28.40 F 24.00 C Detectent in previous enus study but not derication under resided assumption. 26.41 10 None listed 285C D 18.0 C 11.4 E 200.0 F 200.0 F <td< td=""><td>2</td><td>ion St/Ridge Rd/Nevada City Hwy</td><td>AWSC</td><td>0</td><td></td><td></td><td>NA</td><td>L</td><td>11.1</td><td>8</td><td>8.4</td><td>4</td><td>Improvements identified in the previous study have already been built and paid for</td></td<>	2	ion St/Ridge Rd/Nevada City Hwy	AWSC	0			NA	L	11.1	8	8.4	4	Improvements identified in the previous study have already been built and paid for
158RSOUSR ABUHen SUSSSCDNoF62.2F>1000FNew Counts on June G2, 201516.21None listedNone listedSSSCD18.0C14.0C14.0C14.0C2.4None listedANYSCD18.0C14.0F21.3C41.4EBenefinden fine provious study has already been done2.4None listedANYSCD10.0F21.3C41.4EBenefinden fine provious study has already been done2.4None listedANYSCDNOF21.3C41.4EBenefinden fine provious study has already been done2.5None listedNone listedNone listedNone listedNone17.1C20.4CNone2.6None listedNone listedNone listedNoneSSSCDNone17.1C20.4C3.6SSCMONDSIDDNone listedNoneSSSCDSSSCDNoneNone3.6SSCMONDSIDDNone listedSSSCDSSSCDSSSCDNoneNone3.6SSCMONDSSSCDDNoneSSSCDNoneSSSCDNoneNoneNone3.6SSCMONDSSSCDDSSSCDSSSCDNoneNoneNoneNoneNone3.7 </td <td>14 S</td> <td>R-20/48 Golden Center Fwy: Bennett St to Ida</td> <td>aho-Maryland</td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>61.795</td> <td>u</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>54,400</td> <td>υ</td> <td>Deficient in previous nexus study but not deficient under revised assumptions.</td>	14 S	R-20/48 Golden Center Fwy: Bennett St to Ida	aho-Maryland	0			61.795	u			54,400	υ	Deficient in previous nexus study but not deficient under revised assumptions.
(3-21 More lated (3-2) More lated (3-2) More lated (3-2) </td <td>15 9 5</td> <td>R 20/SR 49/Uren St</td> <td>SSSC</td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>293.0</td> <td>L</td> <td>623.2</td> <td>L</td> <td>>1000</td> <td>ц.</td> <td>New Counts on June 02, 2015</td>	15 9 5	R 20/SR 49/Uren St	SSSC	0			293.0	L	623.2	L	>1000	ц.	New Counts on June 02, 2015
27 8 23 Burnweick Relictione Rete Rel SSSC D 180 C 1410 F 240 C 118 C	6-21 N	bne listed											
Month Burnswick RdLG Brunch RdL Bennerts NGreenhon Rd SNSC D RdB Early meets LGS threahol County considers this lower priority than cht 24 None Isled SNSC D ReB 740 E 814 81 814 814 814 814 814 814 814 814 814 814 814 814 814 814 81 8	B 22 8	runswick RafLome Rice Ra	SSSC	٥	18.0	υ	414.0	u	24.0	υ	11.8	a	Signalization identified in the previous study has already been done
24 Burnswick RdLSR T/4/Coffack Highway SSSC D 168.0 F 17.1 C 20.4 C kwc. Countia on June 02. 2015 25.28 None Ideated None Ideated <td>8</td> <td>runswick Rd/E Bennett St/Greenhorn Rd</td> <td>AWSC</td> <td>0</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>74.0</td> <td>4</td> <td>21.3</td> <td>υ</td> <td>41.4</td> <td>щ</td> <td>Barely meets LOS threshold. County considers this lower priority than ather projects.</td>	8	runswick Rd/E Bennett St/Greenhorn Rd	AWSC	0			74.0	4	21.3	υ	41.4	щ	Barely meets LOS threshold. County considers this lower priority than ather projects.
25 Mone Isled	24 B	runswick Rd/SR 174/Colfax Highway	SSSC	٥			168.0	L	17.1	υ	20.4	υ	New Counts an June 02, 2015
28 10 E-Mail Streaments UnRichardson Str Signal D 27.4 C 29.3 C Improvements Identified In the original RTMF study have already been but with the file original RTMF study have already been but with the study and ready Hamiltonian RTMF study have already been but with the RTM study have already been but with the RTM study have already been but with the RTMF study have already been but with the RTM study have already been but with the RTMF study have already been but with the RTMF study have already been but with the RTMM study have already have already been but with the RTMM study have already already have already ha	5-28 h	one listed	-							1			
30-36 None tate Image	29 10 E	Main St/Bennett St/Richardson St	Signal	٥					27.4	υ	29.3	υ	Improvements identified in the original RTMF study have already been built
36 587 Zolfkough and Ready Highway Signal D 67/g E 201 C 215 C The impact occurred in the AM peak period as indicated in the previous not as indicated in the previous not as indicated in the Zolf and Zo	0-35 N	one listed											
37 5R 20/Pleasant Valley, Ful Signal D Signal D C The impact occurred in the AM peak period as indicated in the previous. In the previous. The impact occurred in the AM peak period as indicated in the previous. The impact occurred in the AM peak period as indicated in the previous. The impact occurred in the AM peak period as indicated in the previous. The impact occurred in the AM peak period as indicated in the previous. The impact occurred in the AM peak period as indicated in the previous. The impact occurred in the AM peak period as indicated in the AM peak period. 8 Disate Homes SSSC D N No impact onside in a province study. Indicated in the AM peak period as indicated in the AM peak period. 1 State Homes SSSC D N </td <td>36 S</td> <td>R 20/Rough and Ready Highway</td> <td>Signal</td> <td>D</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>67.0</td> <td>ш</td> <td>20.1</td> <td>υ</td> <td>21.5</td> <td>0</td> <td>The impact occured in the AM peak period as indicated in the previous nexus study</td>	36 S	R 20/Rough and Ready Highway	Signal	D			67.0	ш	20.1	υ	21.5	0	The impact occured in the AM peak period as indicated in the previous nexus study
38 Doravy Drive Extension 1 No No </td <td>37 8</td> <td>R 20/Pleasant Valley Rd</td> <td>Signal</td> <td>٥</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>58.0</td> <td>ш</td> <td>25.1</td> <td>υ</td> <td>30.0</td> <td>ο</td> <td>The impact occured in the AM peak period as indicated in the previous nexus study</td>	37 8	R 20/Pleasant Valley Rd	Signal	٥			58.0	ш	25.1	υ	30.0	ο	The impact occured in the AM peak period as indicated in the previous nexus study
i SR-48/ICement HI Fid SSSC D Not in previous study, but County requested that it be studied this line 11 SR-48/ICement HI Fid SSSC D Not in previous study, but County requested that it be studied this line 11 SR-48/ICement HI Fid SSSC D Not in previous study, but County requested that it be studied this line 13 SR-48/ICement HI Fid SSSC D Not in previous study, but County requested that it be studied this line 14 SSSE D Not in previous study, but County requested that it be studied this line 15 State Hybway Projects SSS D Not in previous study, but County requested that it be studied this line 16 Ann Costs and Syster reviews D D Not in previous study, but County requested that it be studied this line	38	orsey Drive Extension											No longer considered a regional project so is not eligible for RTMF. Perhaps TIF
11 SS-49Coycle Si DS D SS-49Coycle Si SSC D Not in previous study. but County requested that it be studied this time Ref Attime State Highway Projects Not in previous study. but County requested that it be studied this time Attime Attime Attime Now tisted individually Now tisted individually Attime Attime Attime Computed as a percentage of total project costs Intervision of the project costs	ŝ	R-49/Cement Hill Rd	SSSC	0					23,7	υ	34.0	0	Not in previous study, but County requested that it be studied this time
State Highway Projects New listed individually Admin Costs and 5-year reviews Computed as a percentage of total project costs	11 5	R-49/Coyote St	SSSC	0					66.5		116.9	4	Not in previous study, but County requested that it be studied this time
Admin costs and 5 year reviews Computed as a percentage of total project costs	N2	tate Highway Projects											Now listed individually
Notes:	A	dmin Costs and 5-year reviews											Computed as a percentage of total project costs
	les: Inr signalized interse	sctions average delay and I OS for all approac	thes are rent	helter									

Exhibit 16: Existing and Future LOS at Potential Project Locations

August 2016

Page 21

3.0 - UPDATED FEE CALCULATION



3.3 Determining the Percent of Project Need Attributable to New Development

The procedure for determining the percentage of the need to improve a roadway facility that is attributable to new development is illustrated in Exhibit 17.



Exhibit 17: Examples of How the Percent Attributable to New Development is Determined

In Exhibit 17 the capacity is the maximum volume that can be accommodated at the adopted LOS. There are three possible cases, namely:

- In Case 1, the roadway facility is operating at below its capacity under existing conditions and is forecast to continue to do so under future (2030) conditions. In such cases there is no deficiency and so no impact fees can be collected for the project⁴.
- In Case 2 the facility operates below its maximum capacity under existing conditions but the capacity is insufficient to accommodate the expected future growth in traffic. In such cases the need to provide additional capacity is entirely attributable to new development.
- In Case 3 the traffic using the facility already exceeds its rated capacity and the expected growth in traffic will exacerbate the situation. In such cases the percentage attributable to new development is the portion of the volume beyond the rated capacity that comes from new development.

Exhibit 18 shows how this methodology was applied to the projects identified in Exhibit 16 as having existing and/or future deficiencies.

⁴ This is not to say that the project is not justified; only that the justification is unrelated to the need to provide additional capacity to accommodate future development. The seismic retrofit of a bridge would be an example of a project where the need is not based on insufficient capacity.

RTMF 2016 Nexus Update Study - Final Report 3.0 - UPDATED FEE CALCULATION

	e.			18		п.
3	6		-24	15		18
Ξ.	£3		-28	2	81	а.
4		23		ч	21	1
12			- 24	- 8	ь.	4
- 7	13		- 1		80	4

						Existin	6		Future (2)	035) Withou	rt Improvem	ents	% of
Project ID (from Previous	Project ID (New)	Facility	Segment	LOS Standard	Peak-Hour Entering Volume or ADT	Capacity*	V/C Ratio	TOS	Peak-Hour Entering Volume or ADT	Capacity*	V/C Ratio	FOS	Deficiency Attributable to New Development
ornay					(A)	(B)	(C)=(A)/(B)	(Q)	(E)	Ð	(G)=(E)/(F)	(H)	(I)=(G-D)/(D-1)
-	1	SR 20/49 Ramps	Dorsey Drive Interchange	D									33% **
28	2	SR-49	South of La Barr Meadows Rd (SB)	D	11,604	8,325	1.39	L	12,050	8,325	1.45	L	12%
2C	3	SR-49	South of Alta Sierra Dr (SB)	0	11,498	8,325	1.38	L	11,600	8,325	1.39	L	3%
2D	4	SR-49	South of Wolf Creek	D	27,852	16,650	1.67	LL.	28,300	16,650	1.70	L	4%
4	S	SR-49 NB & SB Ramps	@ McKnight Way	D	2,379	2,200	1.08	w	2,692	2,200	1.22	L	64%
9	9	SR 20 EB Ramps	@ McCourtney Rd	Δ	1,275	969	1.32	L	1,420	969	1.47	L	32%
₽	2	SR 20/49 NB Ramps	@ Idaho Maryland Rd	D	1.327	1,420	0.93	υ	1,740	1,420	1.23	ш	100%
13A	80	SR 20/49 SB Ramps	@ Ridge Rd/Gold Flat Rd		1,394	1,352	1.03	ш	1,440	1,352	1.07	w	52%
5	റ	SR 20/SR 49	@ Uren St		1,685	1,045	1.61	L	1,860	1.045	1.78	L	21%
	10	South Auburn St	@ SR-20/49 NB Ramps		1,143		4	0	1.320			L	100%
***	11	SR-49	@ Coyote St		1.179	1,003	1.18	L	1.270	1,003	1.27	L	34%
* For ro	adway seg	iments, capacity is as de model runs that showed t	fined in the General Plan. For intersect the percentage of future traffic was attr	tions, capac	city is defined	as the maxin	the sum of the	le appro	ach volumes	that does n	ot exceed the	e LOS st	andard
*** Not in	Dreviol IS D	avis chick											

Exhibit 18: Determination of Percent of Project Need Attributable to New Development

August 2016

Page 23

3.0 - UPDATED FEE CALCULATION



As can be seen from Exhibit 18, of the 11 sites where deficiencies were identified there were only 2 locations where the need for the project is wholly attributable to new development (i.e. Case 2 in Exhibit 17). In all 9 of the other locations a deficiencies already exists to some degree and new development is responsible for only a portion of the need for improvement (i.e. Case 3 in Exhibit 17).

3.4 Determining the Amount Potentially Collectable Through the RTMF

The amount potentially collectable through the RTMF program was calculated using the updated project costs, the percentage of project need attributable to new development show in Exhibit 18, and the funding available from other sources shown in Exhibit 13. This calculation is shown in Exhibit 19.

Column F in Exhibit 19 shows funding available that is in excess of the funding needed to correct existing deficiencies (Column D). The funds shown in Column F show how future development in Nevada County has benefitted from state and federal grant funding, since if funds had not come from those other sources then these amounts would have been collectable from new development through impact fees.

RTMF 2016 Nexus Update Study - Final Report 3.0 - UPDATED FEE CALCULATION

Å	2		121	323
7	Ē	10	8.	66.5
č,	ę	28	an 1	163
٩	c	4	81	18.1

Funds Needed from Other Sources	(K)=(A)-(E)-(J)	U9	529.411.686	\$119 552 098	C2 010 550	51 056 083	US	\$310 773	THEA PDF	US Sh	35	C270 745	4401114	\$154 335 813	1997
Armount Potentially Collectable from RTMF	(I)-(H)-(D)=(r	53 471 757	\$4 005 587	\$3,862,597	55 089 431	\$500.432	51 380 043	S350 227	5733 760	\$1 231 535	CTR 250 12	C110 288	6255 SED	\$21 703 560	11%
RTMF Funds Spent on Project	()	000 71-05	50	SO	20	20	05	205	05	US	205	5	8	\$214.020	
RTMF Funds Currently Available	(H)	S929.114	20	SO	20	50	05	\$0	SO	5288.485	SD	US	5	\$1.197.579	1%
Arnoumt Potentially Collectable from Mitigation Fees	(G)=(C)+(F)	54,814,381	S4.005.587	\$3,862.597	\$5,089,431	\$500.432	51,380,043	\$350.227	\$233 760	\$1.500.000	51.033.842	5119 788		\$22,689,599	12%
Funds from other sources beyond what is needed for existing deficiencies	W (E)>(D), (F)=(E)-(D) Otherwise (F) = 0	\$3.377.164	20	20	\$0	0S	\$0	SO	SO	20	20	IOS		\$3,377,164	
Funding from Other Sources (STIP, SHOPP, etc.)	(E)	\$19,385,609	50	80	20	20	205	20	50	20	\$0	SO		\$19,385,609	
Costs Attributable to Existing Deficiencies (not New Development)	(D) = (A) - (B)	\$16,008,445	\$29,411,686	S119,552,096	\$2,810,569	\$1,056,083	8	\$319.773	\$854,895	20	SC	\$230,712		\$170,344,258	87%
Costs Attributable to New Development	$(C) = (A)^{*}(B)$	\$7,991,555	\$4,005,587	\$3.862.597	\$5,089,431	\$500,432	\$1,380,043	\$350,227	\$233,760	\$1,500,000	\$1,033,842	\$119,288		\$26,066,763	13%
% of Need Attributable to New Development	(8)	33%	12%	3%	64%	32%	100%	52%	21%	100%	100%	34%			
Updated Cost Estimate	(A)	\$24,000,000	\$33,417,273	\$123,414,693	\$8,000,000	S1,556,515	\$1,380,043	\$670,000	\$1,088,655	\$1,500,000	\$1,033,842	\$350,000		\$196,411,021	
Segment		Dorsey Drive	S/o La Barr Meadows Rd (SB)	South of Alts Sierra Dr (SB)	McKnight Way	McCourtney Rd	C Idaho Maryland Rd	C Ridge Rd/Gold Flat Rd	回 Uren St	@ Bennett SVRichardson St	C SR-20/49 NB Ramps	@ Coyote St	ar reviews (2% of program)		osts for needed projects
Facility		SR-49 Interchange	SR-49	SR-49	SR-49 NB & SB Ramp	SR 20 EB Ramps	SR 20/49 NB Ramps	SR 20/49 SB Ramps	SR 20/SR 48	E Main St	South Auburn St	SR-49	Admin Costs and 5-yes	Total	As a percent of total co
 Projec † ID (New)		-	2		4	5	8	2	8	a	10	11	12		
Project ID (from Previous	Study)	-	28	20	4	9	10	13A	15	29		:			

* indicates a project that had been in the previous Grass Valley TIF project ist but is now being identified as a regional project and so shifted to the RTMF program ** indicates a new project not in the previous project list but identified in the current study as a deficiency that is at least partially attributable to new development.

Exhibit 19: Calculation of the Amount Potentially Collectable Through the RTMF between 2016 and 2030

August 2016

Page 25

3.0 - UPDATED FEE CALCULATION



3.5 Residential and Non-Residential Shares of Traffic Impacts

The previous (2008) nexus study used the number of vehicle trips generated by different types of developments as the primary indicator of their traffic impacts. Since that time, the State of California has instituted a new policy⁵ by which vehicle-miles travelled (VMT) will now be used as the main indicator of traffic impacts. VMT takes into account the fact that traffic impacts are proportional both to the number of new trips associated with the development and the average length of those trips.

Outputs from the NCTC Travel Demand Model were used to forecast the growth in VMT for the five different types of trips that are represented in the model. The growth in VMT from new development was attributed to residential and non-residential developments based on trip type. Standard practice for how to do this can be found in NCHRP Report 187⁶, a primary reference for travel estimation techniques used in travel demand modeling, which states that "*HBW (Home Based Work) and HBNW (Home Based Non Work) trips are generated at the households, whereas the NHB (Non-Home Based) trips are generated elsewhere*." NCTC policy follows this practice by attributing all trips beginning or ending at the traveler's home (roughly 2/3^{rds} of all trips) to the residential land use while all trips not involving a residential location (roughly 1/3rd of all trips) are attributed to non-residential land uses.

Exhibit 20 shows the average trip length by trip purpose in the NCTC traffic model. The four home-based trip purposes, shown in gray, have longer average lengths than non-home-based trips. Consequently the change from trip-based fees to VMT-based fees tends to shift the incidence of the fees away from non-residential development and more towards residential development.



Exhibit 20: Average Trip Length by Trip Purpose

⁵ SB-743, signed into law in 2013

⁶ *Quick Response Urban Travel Estimation Techniques and Transferable Parameters User's Guide*, Transportation Research Board, 1978



Trip Purpose	Growth in	% of Total
	VMT	VMT Growth
Attributable to Residential Development		
Home-Base Other Trips	92,567	56%
Home-Base Work Trips	39,401	24%
Home-Based School Trips	2,075	1%
Home-Based Sierra College Trips	1,417	1%
Attributable to Non-Residential Development		
Non-Home-Based Trips	28,892	18%
Total	164,352	100%

The forecast growth in VMT from residential and non-residential land uses is shown Exhibit 21.

Exhibit 21: Percentage of VMT Growth Attributable to Residential and Non-Residential Development

Based on this calculation, 85% of VMT growth was attributed to residential development and 15% was attributed to non-residential development.

3.6 Determining the Total Number of Trips and the Fee Per Trip

As described earlier, the next step in the process is to determine the total number of trips for residential and non-residential development. This was done by multiplying the trip generation rate for each land use category (see Exhibit 6) by number of new units of each land use type (see Exhibit 12). The result is shown in Exhibit 22.

3.0 - UPDATED FEE CALCULATION

Land Use	Unit	Trip-Gen Rate	# of New Units	Daily Trips
Residential		and the second		
Single-Family Dwelling	DU	9.52	3,324	31,644
Multi-Family Dwelling	DU	6.59	1,779	11,724
Mobile Home in Park	DU	4.99	100	499
Senior Housing	DU	3.56	365	1,299
Total Residential				45,166
Non-Residential				
Retail - Low	TSF	23.88	392	9,370
Retail - Medium	TSF	51.02	314	16,018
Retail - High	TSF	90.46	78	7,100
Office	TSF	12.05	976	11,760
Light Industry	TSF	5.33	240	1,276
Warehouse	TSF	3.56	40	142
Lodging	Rooms	6.45	20	129
Public & Quasi-Public*	TSF	68.93	100	6,893
School K-8th Grade*	Students	1.29	516	666
School 9-12th Grade*	Students	1.71	383	655
Community College*	Students	1.23	439	540
Total Non-Residential				54,549

* Public Sector

Exhibit 22: Computation of Total Residential and Non-Residential Trips

The portion of project costs attributable to new development (see Exhibit 19) was multiplied by the percent attributable to residential and non-residential development (see Exhibit 21) to find the feeeligible costs for residential and non-residential development. This was then divided by the number of trips shown in Exhibit 22 to determine the fee per trip for residential and non-residential developments (see Exhibit 23).



ltem	Formula	Total RTMF- Eligible Project Costs	Attributable to Residential Development	Attributable to Non-Residential Development
Total Project Costs	(A)	\$21,703,560		
% Attributable by Category	(B)		82%	18%
Amount Attributable by Category	(C)=(A)*(B)		\$17,888,232.99	\$3,815,327.23
Trip Ends	(D)		45,166	54,549
RTMF per Trip End	(E)=(C)/(D)		\$396.05	\$69.94

Exhibit 23: Computation of Fee per Trip

3.7 Recommended Fee by Land Use Category

The final step is to compute the fee to be charged for each unit of new development. This is done by multiplying the trip generation rates from Exhibit 6 by the fee per trip from Exhibit 23. The result is shown in Exhibit 24. Exhibit 24 also compares the new fees with the current fees. The key points from this comparison are:

- A small decrease is recommended for the fees for per single-family home, multi-family unit, and senior homes.
- A larger reduction is recommended in the fees for mobile homes in mobile home parks. This is due to them being split off from multi-family housing into their own category in recognition of their lower trip-generation rate.
- A larger reduction in fees is recommended for every category of non-residential land use. The
 decrease is primarily a function of the change from basing fees on the number of vehicle trips
 and instead basing fees on the VMT, which is a better measure of traffic impact⁷. Since
 businesses have on average shorter trip lengths than homes the effect is to shift the incidence of
 the fee from non-residential development more towards residential development.

Policy-makers are sometimes concerned about the effects that a fee program might have in terms of making their county less competitive than peer counties in attracting development. There are two aspects to this, namely:

- People and businesses moving to foothills counties expect to find little or no traffic congestion. To the extent that the RTMF provides funding for needed capacity improvements it improves the competitiveness of Nevada County.
- Impact fees, like any other cost, inhibit development to some extent. However, this does not
 mean that they necessarily reduce competitiveness. As can be seen in Exhibit 25, the
 recommended RTMF fees would be in the middle of the pack among peer counties and so are
 unlikely to deter development. The recommended RTMF fees for non-residential development
 would be quite low compared to peer counties (see Exhibit 26).

⁷ SB-743, signed into law in 2013 and currently being phased into practice, will make VMT the main measure of traffic impacts in California.



3.0 – UPDATED FEE CALCULATION

% Change	(G)=(F)/(C)-1		-10%	-12%	-33%	-8%		-37%	-32%	-54%	-46%	-31%	-55%	-36%	NA	NA	NA	NA	
Proposed Fee	(F)=(D)*(E)		\$3,770	\$2,610	\$1,976	\$1,410		\$842	\$372	\$249	\$1,670	\$3,568	\$6,327	\$451	Exempt	Exempt	Exempt	Exempt	
Updated Trip-Gen Rate	(E)		9.52	6.59	4.99	3.56		12.05	5.33	3.56	23.88	51.02	90.46	6.45					
Proposed Fee per Trip	0		\$396	\$396	\$396	\$396		\$70	\$70	\$70	\$70	\$70	\$70	\$70					
Current Fee	(C)=(A)*(B)		\$4,201	\$2,950	\$2,950	\$1,528		\$1,330	\$546	\$546	\$3,102	\$5,191	\$13,987	\$710	Exempt	Exempt	Exempt	Exempt	
Current Trip-Gen Rate	(B)		9.57	6.72	6.72	3.48		12.09	4.96	4.96	28.20	47.19	127.15	6.45					
Current Fee per Trip	(A)		\$439	\$439	\$439	\$439		\$110	\$110	\$110	\$110	\$110	\$110	\$110					
Unit			Dwelling Unit	Dwelling Unit	Dwelling Unit	Dwelling Unit		Thousand Sq. ft.	Thousand Sq. ft.	Thousand Sq. ft.	Thousand Sq. ft.	Thousand Sq. ft.	Thousand Sq. ft.	Room	Thousand Sq. ft.	Student	Student	Student	
Typical Use		Residential	Single Family House	Mutti Family Housing	Mobile Home in Park	Senior Housing	Non-Residential	Office	Industrial	Warehouse	Retail/Service - Low	Retail/Service - Medium	Retail/Service - High	Lodging	Public & Quasi-Public	School K-8th Grade	School 9-12th Grade	Public College	

* Public-sector land uses are generally exempt from local fees ** The unit of analysis for this category is "rooms". Trip-gen rate shown is the average for the hotel and motel categories

Exhibit 24: Computation of Revised Fee Levels

August 2016



Exhibit 25: Comparison of County-Wide Residential Impact Fees Among Foothills Counties





3.8 Revenues Raised by the RTMF Program

Based on the number of new units of development shown in Exhibit 12 and the recommended fee schedule shown in Exhibit 24, the total fee revenue expected to be generated by the RTMF in the next 20 years is \$22.2 million, as shown in Exhibit 27. Note that this is slightly (3%) less than the \$23.0M in project costs attributable to new development shown in Column J of Exhibit 19. This is because public-sector developments are exempt from the RTMF and their share of the costs cannot legally be transferred to others development, since the latter are responsible only for mitigating their own impacts.

		a second s					
Land Use Category	Unit	RTMF/ Trip End	Trip-Gen Rate	RTMF/ Unit	Expected # of New Units	Expected Revenues	Percent of Revenues
Residential							
Single Family House	DU	\$396.05	9.52	\$3,770	3,324	\$12,532,828	59.4%
Multi Family	DU	\$396.05	6.59	\$2,610	1,779	\$4,643,147	22.0%
Mobile Home	DU	\$396.05	4.99	\$1,976	100	\$197,629	0.9%
Senior Housing	DU	\$396.05	3.56	\$1,410	365	\$514,629	2.4%
				Re	esidential Total >	\$17,888,233	84.8%
Non-Residential							
Office	TSF	\$69.94	12.05	\$842	976	\$822,497	3.9%
Light Industry	TSF	\$69.94	5.33	\$372	240	\$89.275	0.4%
Warehouse	TSF	\$69.94	3.56	\$249	40	\$9,960	0.0%
Retail/Service - Low	TSF	\$69.94	23.88	\$1,670	392	\$655,348	3.1%
Retail/Service - Medium	TSF	\$69.94	51.02	\$3,568	314	\$1,120,364	5.3%
Retail/Service - High	TSF	\$69.94	90.46	\$6,327	78	\$496,610	2.4%
Lodging	Rooms	\$69.94	6.45	\$451	20	\$9,023	0.0%
Public & Quasi-Public	TSF	Exempt	68.93	\$0	100	\$0	0.0%
School K-8th Grade	Students	Exempt	1.29	\$0	516	\$0	0.0%
School 9-12th Grade	Students	Exempt	1.71	\$0	383	\$0	0.0%
Public College	Students	Exempt	1.23	\$0	439	\$0	0.0%
				Non-Re	esidential Total >	\$3,203,078	15.2%
				С	ombined Total >	\$21.091.311	
	As a Perce	entage of Proje	ct Costs Attribu	table to New	/ Development >	97%	

Exhibit 27: Forecast of RTMF Revenues

Approximately 83% of the forecast revenue will come from single and multi-family housing. It is therefore crucial to the viability of the program that fees on those two categories of development not be reduced.

3.9 Results in Terms of Project Funding

The revenue forecast computed in the previous section can be compared to the project costs shown in Exhibit 19. Pro-rating the \$22.2M in RTMF revenue over the \$23.0M in eligible project costs results in the allocations by project shown in Exhibit 28.

Exhibit 28 shows that \$155.0M in additional funding will be needed over the course of the next 20 years to fully fund the project list. Section 2.4 of this report showed that if future state funding is similar to previous funding then approximately \$158.2M will become available over the 20-year period (see Exhibit 13). We therefore believe that there is a reasonable expectation that the projects identified for RTMF funding can be fully funded within the planning time horizon.

1.0
ω
1
\circ
2
-
S
5
D
3
1

Exhibit 28: Proposed Allocation of RTMF Revenues to Projects

-	1			lin	+	+	Im		1+	lic	lic	IN	In	6		%	1
Other Sources	Future	runaing	36	\$29,546,195	\$119,681,804	\$3,081,474	\$1,072,888	\$46,342	\$331,534	\$862,745	\$41,355	\$34,717	\$234,71	\$14,290	\$154,948,062	78.75	
Funds from C	Already	secured	\$19,385,609	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$19,385,609	9.8%	
Funds	Fees on Future	Development	\$3,471,257	\$3,871,078	\$3,732,890	\$4,918,526	\$483,627	\$1,333,700	\$338,466	\$225,911	\$1,190,180	\$999,125	\$115,283	\$411,270	\$21,091,311	10.7%	
RTMF	Already	Collected	\$1,143,134	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$268,465	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$1,411,599	0.7%	
1 Indatad	Cost Cost	Collingia	\$24,000,000	\$33,417,273	\$123,414,693	\$8,000,000	\$1,556,515	\$1,380,043	\$670,000	\$1,088,655	\$1,500,000	\$1,033,842	\$350,000	\$425,560	\$196,836,581		
	Segment		Dorsey Drive	S/o La Barr Meadows Rd (SB)	South of Alta Sierra Dr (SB)	@ McKnight Way	@ McCourtney Rd	@ Idaho Maryland Rd	@ Ridge Rd/Gold Flat Rd	@ Uren St	@ Bennett St/Richardson St	@ SR-20/49 NB Ramps	@ Coyote St	ar reviews		osts for needed projects	
	Facility		SR-49 Interchange	SR-49	SR-49	SR-49 NB & SB Ramps	SR 20 EB Ramps	SR 20/49 NB Ramps	SR 20/49 SB Ramps	SR 20/SR 49	E.Main St	South Auburn St	SR-49	Admin Costs and 5-yea	Total	As a percent of total co	
Droioct	ID (Now)	(MADAI)	1	2	e	4	5	9	7	00	ວ	10	11	12			
Project	ID (from Previous	Study)	1	2B	2C	4	9	10	13A	15	29	*	**				:

6	
L	
Ē	
-	
1	
A II	
1	
1	
6	
1.1	
-	
L	

** indicates a new project not in the previous project list but identified in the current study as a deficiency that is at least partially attributable to new development

Page 33

4.0 MITIGATION FEE ACT FINDINGS

The Mitigation Fee Act, as set forth in the California Government Code Sections 66000 through 66008, establishes the framework for mitigation fees in the State of California. The Act requires agencies to make certain findings with respect to a proposed fee. These are described in the sections below.

4.1 Purpose of the Fee

Identify the purpose of the fee

The purpose of the RTMF is to establish a uniform, cooperative program to mitigate the cumulative indirect regional impacts of future developments on traffic conditions on regional roadways in Nevada County. The fees will help fund improvements needed to maintain the target level of service in the face of the higher traffic volumes brought on by new developments.

4.2 Use of Fee Revenues

Identify the use to which the fees will be put. If the use is financing facilities, the facilities shall be identified

The list of projects to receive RTMF funding is shown in Exhibit 28. Based on input from the member agencies and the public, we recommend that the regional fee should be used only for roads of regional significance. This is consistent with the fact that cumulative indirect impacts tend to be on regional facilities and so should be addressed with a regional fee program; Grass Valley and the County have complementary programs to mitigate more local impacts, and direct impacts are covered through exactions. Only projects involving state facilities were considered "regional" under this policy and can receive RTMF funding.

4.3 Use/Type-of-Development Relationship

Determine the reasonable relationship between the fees' use and the type of development project on which the fees are imposed

To determine the "use" relationship, the development being assessed an impact fee must be reasonably shown to derive some use or benefit from the facility being built using the fee. In the case of the RTMF the projects to be funded were selected based on the fact that they performed a regional (as opposed to local) function and that the need for the project was at least partially attributable to new development. The growth in regional VMT and the increases in congestion at project sites (see Exhibit 18) are evidence that new developments contributes towards the need for roadway improvements.

The fact that the projects that will be funded by the RTMF are high-priority regional roads means that all of the county's new residents and businesses will benefit in important ways from the maintenance of a reasonable level of service. Most drivers in the new developments can be expected to use these roads regularly, and those that do not will nevertheless benefit because good traffic conditions on the RTMF-funded roads will keep drivers from diverting to other roads and causing congestion in other parts of the county. Even residents or workers in the new developments who do not drive at all will benefit from access to goods and services made possible in part by the serviceability of the regional road network.

4.4 Need/Type-of-Development Relationship

Determine the reasonable relationship between the need for the public facilities and the types of development on which the fees are imposed

To determine the "need" relationship the facilities to be financed must be shown to be needed at least in part because of the new development. This was determined by analyzing the forecast traffic demand with the expected degree of new development and comparing that with the demand without new development. Projects were analyzed individually and the degree to which the need for the project was attributable to new development varied from project to project. This analysis is described in an earlier chapter of this report.

4.5 Proportionality Relationship

Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between the fee amount and the cost of the facilities or portion of the facilities attributable to the development on which the fee is imposed

The "proportionality" relationship requires that there be rough proportionality between the fee charged to each type of development and the cost of the facility being financed. In the case of the RTMF the differences in the traffic generated by different types of development were factored into the fee to be charged for each type, as is described earlier in this report. Within each land use category the size of the project, i.e. the number of dwelling units constructed or size of the building, is accounted for in assessing the fee. This ensures that projects that generate a lot of traffic and therefore have a greater traffic impact will pay more than other projects that have less impacts.

EXHIBIT C Regional Transportation Mitigation Fee 2016 Administrative Plan

Prepared for:



Prepared by:



2150 River Plaza Drive Sacramento, CA 95833

October 2016

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Table of Contents

1.0	Introduction
2.0	Purpose2
3.0	Authority2
4.0	Participation and Imposition of the RTMF Program Fee3
5.0	Allocation of Funds
6.0	Administration of the RTMF8
7.0	Administration of Credits
8.0	Administration of Reimbursements8
9.0	Administrative Responsibilities9
10.0	Administrative Costs14
11.0	Appeals15
12.0	CEQA16

Appendix: Guidelines for Administration of Programmed Projects in the Adopted Five-Year Transportation Improvement Program



1.0 Introduction

Future development within western Nevada County will result in traffic volumes exceeding the capacity of the regional system of roads, streets, and highways (the "Regional System") as it presently exists (see Regional Transportation Mitigation Fee 2016 Nexus Study Update Final Report). The Regional System needs to be improved to accommodate anticipated future growth. The funds currently available are inadequate to construct the improvements to the Regional System needed to avoid the unacceptable levels of traffic congestion and related adverse impacts.

The RTMF Program will provide significant additional funds from new development to make improvements to the Regional System, complementing local transportation fee programs and other funding sources. By having a fee on new development in the region, local agencies can provide a mechanism by which developers will effectively contribute their fair share toward sustaining the Regional System. This is a twenty year program and will be influenced by a variety of market factors that could cause a shortfall or surplus in the revenue projections. The RTMF Program shall be reviewed at a minimum of five year intervals to ensure the integrity of the program. The program is not designed to be the only source of revenue to construct the identified facilities, and it will be necessary for matching funds to be provided from a variety of available sources.

With approval from both the local jurisdiction imposing the fees and the Nevada County Transportation Commission (NCTC), RTMF requirements may be met by paying cash, building eligible facilities or through public financing, such as Community Facility Districts and Assessment Districts, or private financing vehicles consistent with local jurisdiction policies.

General RTMF Program parameters, definitions, and procedures are described in the RTMF Program resolutions adopted by participating western Nevada County jurisdictions. The NCTC is designated as the RTMF Program Administrator, and as such, works closely with member jurisdictions to coordinate transportation expenditure programs to maximize the effectiveness of future transportation investments.

The term "Administrative Plan" means this Administrative Plan for the Western Nevada County RTMF Program planned to be adopted by NCTC in November 2016. This Plan may be amended from time to time, provided that any material amendments to this RTMF Administrative Plan shall be approved by the NCTC Executive Committee (described in Section 8.A.2). This Administrative Plan serves as the guideline to implement the RTMF Program and will be amended as needed to address changing conditions over the life of the program.

2.0 Purpose

The purpose of this Administrative Plan is to provide those jurisdictions that are participants in the RTMF Program with guidelines and policies for implementation and administration of the RTMF Program.

RTMF Program funds may only be used for capital expenditures associated with the Regional System consistent with the RTMF Nexus Study. These purposes include expenditures for the engineering and design costs, environmental documentation, right-of-way acquisition, construction, construction management, and administrative costs.

3.0 Authority

The RTMF Program has been developed pursuant to and consistent with authority provided in the requirements of California Government Code Chapter 5, Section 66000-66008, Fees for Development Projects



(also known as California Assembly Bill 1600 or the Mitigation Fee Act), which governs the assessment of development impact fees in California.

4.0 Participation and Imposition of the RTMF Program Fee

Participating jurisdictions in western Nevada County are responsible for collecting the fees on new development within their jurisdictions. To be considered a participant in the RTMF Program, a jurisdiction must have adopted the RTMF Program no later than September 1, 2008, and adopt any amendment of the RTMF Program within ninety (90) days of approval by the Executive Committee, unless otherwise directed by the Executive Committee. Participating jurisdictions shall not modify the RTMF Program, except to meet local municipal codes and references. Further, in order to be considered a participating jurisdiction, local jurisdictions shall collect the full RTMF and transmit the fee to NCTC as provided herein.

A. Land Uses Subject to the RTMF - The RTMF 2016 Nexus Study Update Final Report identifies the land uses subject to the RTMF Program by two types, residential and non-residential. For each land use type, Exhibit 1 display additional subcategories of residential and non-residential land uses and an average daily trip rate for each subcategory. The average daily trip rates are based on a review of land use categories and trip generation rates in the *Trip Generation Manual, 9th Edition* prepared by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) (see Exhibit 1).

For the RTMF obligation, a residential dwelling unit is defined as a building or portion thereof used by one (1) family and containing one (1) kitchen, which is primarily designed for residential occupancy. Residential dwelling units may include, but are not limited to, detached houses, apartment homes, condominiums, and mobile homes. Mobile homes located in a mobile home park will be calculated as "Mobile Home in Park" while mobile homes located on individual lots will be calculated as single-family dwelling units.

For the purpose of calculating the RTMF obligation, non-residential development is defined as retail, service, and industrial development that is designed primarily for use as a business and is not intended for residential occupancy or dwelling use. The applicable non-residential land use category for a non-residential development is determined by the predominate use of the building or structure associated with the new development, and may be related to the underlying land use zoning of the new development site.

Retail developments with an average daily trip generation rate of thirty-five (35) or fewer trips per thousand square feet are included in the Retail-Low category. Retail developments with an average daily trip generation rate between thirty-six (36) and sixty-five (65) trips per thousand square feet are included in the Retail-Medium category. Retail developments with an average daily trip generation rate greater than sixty-five (65) trips per thousand square feet are included in the Retail-High category.

Other non-residential land uses are those that have trip generation characteristics that do not match any of the major categories. In these cases the city or county may require a project-specific traffic study, or will calculate the appropriate fee based on the *Trip Generation Manual* (latest edition).

RTMF 2016 Administrative Plan



Land Use Category	Unit	ITE Code	Weekday Trips per Unit
ESIDENTIAL			
Single Family Detached House	Dwelling Unit	210	9.52
Multi-Family			
Apartment	Dwelling Unit	220	6.65
Low Rise Apartment	Dwelling Unit	221	6.59
Residential Condominium/Townhouse	Dwelling Unit	230	5.81
Median for Multi-Family	2		6.59
Mobile Home in Park	Dwellina Unit	240	4.99
Senior Desidential	- ····	- 10	
Senior Adult Housing - Detected	Dwelling Unit	251	2.69
Senior Adult Housing - Attached	Dwelling Unit	201	3.00
Median for Senior Residential	Dwelling Onit	202	3.44
			3.50
ON-RESIDENTIAL			
Office			
General Office	TSF	710	11.03
Single Tenant Office	TSF	715	11.65
Office Park	TSF	750	11.42
Business Park	TSF	770	12.44
Clinic	TSF	630	31.45
Medical-Dentist Office	TSF	720	36.13
Median for Office			12.05
Industrial			
General Light Industry	TSF	110	6.97
General Heavy Industry	TSF	120	1.50
Industrial Park	TSF	130	6.83
Manufacturing	TSF	140	3.82
Median for Industrial			5.33
Warehousing	TSF	150	3.56
Retail/Service - Low			
Furniture Store	TSE	890	5.06
Discount Home Euroishing Superstore	TSF	869	20.00
Tire Superstore	TSE	849	20.36
Department Store	TSE	875	22.88
Tire Store	TSE	848	24.87
Factory Outlet Center	TSF	823	26.59
Home Improvement Superstore	TSF	862	30.74
New Car Sales	TSF	841	32.30
Median for Retail - Low		011	23.88
Retail/Service - Medium			
Discount Club	TSF	857	41.80
Shopping Center	TSF	820	42.70
Electronics Superstore	TSF	863	45.04
Building Materials and Lumber	TSF	812	45.16
Discount Superstore	TSF	813	50.75
Hardware/Paint Store	TSF	816	51 29
Arts and Crafts Store	TSF	879	56.55
Discount Store	TSF	815	57 24
Auto Parts Store	TSF	843	61.91
Specialty Retail Center	TSF	814	64.03
Median for Retail - Medium		TIV	51 02

Exhibit 1: Trip-Generation Rates for Different Land Use Categories



RTMF 2016 Administrative Plan

Land Use Category	Unit	ITE Code	Weekday Trips per Unit
Retail/Service - High			
Apparel Store	TSF	876	66.40
Nursery (Garden Center)	TSF	817	68.10
Day Care Center	TSF	565	74.06
Quality Restaurant	TSF	931	89.95
Pharmacy/Drugstore w/o Drive Through Win	dow TSF	880	90.06
Discount Supermarket	TSF	854	90.86
Pharmacy/Drugstore with Drive Through Wir	dow TSF	881	96.91
Supermarket	TSF	850	102.24
High Turnover (Sit-Down) Restaurant	TSF	932	127.15
Drive-in Bank	TSF	912	148.15
Median for Reta	ail - High		90.46
Lodging			
Hotel	Room	310	8.17
All Suites Hotel	Room	311	4.90
Business Hotel	Room	312	7.27
Motel	Room	320	5.63
iviedian for	Loaging		6.45
Public & Quasi-Public			
Military Base	TSF	501	1.78
Library	TSF	590	56.24
Government Office Building	TSF	730	68.93
State Motor Vehicles Department	TSF	731	166.02
United States Post Office	TSF	732	108.19
Government Office Complex	TSF	733	27.92
Median for Public	c Sector		68.93
School K-8th Grade	Student	520 & 522	1.33
School 9th-12 Grade	Student	522 & 530	1.69
Junior/Community College	Student	540	1.23
Other Non-Residential All Port and Terminal Uses		000-099	
All Private Institutional Lises (Public Institution	s are Exampt	500-399	The trip generation for any
Convenience Market	s are Exemply	951	project in these categories
Convenience Market with Gasoline Pumps		853	shall be computed using
East Food Restaurant with Drive Through		034	the ITE daily trip-
Coffee/Donut Shop with Drive Through		037 F	generation rate for their
Coffee/Donut Shop Drive Through No Seating	1	938	land use type or, at the
Gasoline/Service Station		944	discretion of agency staff,
Gasoline/Service Station with Convenience M	arket	945	through a separate traffic
Gasoline/Service Station with Convenience M	arket and Car Wash	946	study
Self-Service Car Wash		947	
		0.02 (0.025)	

Exhibit 1: Trip-Generation Rates for Different Land Use Categories (continued)

B. Calculation of the RTMF - Each participating jurisdiction shall calculate and collect the RTMF for projects as outlined in this Administrative Plan. The RTMF shall be calculated using the fee schedule in effect at the time the fee is due.

Exhibit 2 is a form to calculate the amount of RTMF to be charged to development projects. The steps listed below describe how to complete the fee calculation:

1. Fill in the information requested about the project at the top of the sheet.

2. Select the land use category for the project. The column on the far left below the project description identifies the land use categories covered by the RTMF.



- 3. The next column to the right requires identification of units or square footage associated with the project. Residential projects are described in terms of number of dwelling units (DU). Non-residential projects are described according to the number of square footage in the project, expressed in thousands of square feet (TSF).
- 4. Multiply the number of units or TSF applicable to the project times the Trip Generation Rate. The product of the multiplication should be entered into the column titled "Total Trips." The result of the multiplication is the number of total daily trips applied to the project.
- 5. Multiply the total daily trips by the appropriate "Cost Per Trip" (\$396/trip for residential and \$70/trip for non-residential) for the project and enter the product in the column labeled "Total".
- Add the amounts in the Totals column and enter the sum on the "Total Mitigation Fees" line.
- 7. Enter any credits on the next line labeled "Credits Applied".
- 8. Subtract the credits, if any, from the "Total Mitigation Fee" and enter the amount on the line labeled "Net Mitigation Fee." This is the amount of RTMF for the project.
- C. Expiration Of Building Permits If a building permit should expire, is revoked, or is voluntarily surrendered, and is therefore voided and no construction or improvement of land or construction has commenced, then the applicant is entitled to a refund of the RTMF collected, which was paid as a condition of approval, less administrative costs (\$500 or two percent of the fee amount, whichever is greater). The administrative cost shall be used to offset the cost of collection, accounting, and refund. The fee payer shall submit an application for a refund to the local jurisdiction who will forward it to NCTC for processing.

The applicant must pay the appropriate RTMF in full if he reapplies for the permit.

If a development project was partially under construction at the time of the effective date of the RTMF Program, the RTMF shall be paid only on that portion of the development for which a building permit is next issued.

D. Exemptions - The following development shall be exempt from the RTMF:

 The reconstruction of, or addition to, a building, as long as the building continues a use in the same category as the prior use, and generates the same, or fewer, trips as the original building.

It should be noted that the Regional Transportation Mitigation Fee is in addition to any other fees, conditions, or exactions for on-site and off-site improvements imposed on a project according to state law, local ordinances, or administrative policy. In addition, the developer of a project shall not be entitled to any credits for such fees, conditions or exactions.



Owner				Cont	ractor										
Permit Reference Number				Pem	nit Type										
Property ID Number	Job Address														
Date		ŝ					2								
							Cost Pe	r							
							Trip (based o	n							
			Daily Trips F	Per			land use)							
Land Use Category	Units		Unit		Total Trips		type)			Total					
RESIDENTIAL															
Single Family Residential		х	9.52	11		х	\$396	=	\$						
Iultiple Family Residential		Х	6.59	=		х	\$396	=	\$						
lobile Home in Park		Х	4.99	п		х	\$396	=	\$						
Retirement/Senior Residential		Х	3.56	n		Х	\$396	=	\$						
)ther Residential (specify):		Х		н		Х	\$396	11	\$						
	TOP														
NON-RESIDENTIAL	135														
Retail/Service - Low		х	23.86	=	×	Х	\$ 70	=	\$						
Retail/Service – Medium		Х	51.02	=		Х	\$ 70	н	\$						
Retail/Service – High		Х	90.46	=		Х	\$ 70	=	\$						
Office		Х	12.05	=		Х	\$ 70	=	\$						
ndustrial		Х	5.33	=		Х	\$ 70	=	\$						
Varehousing		Х	3.56	=		Х	\$70	=	\$						
odging	(rooms)	Х	6.45	=		Х	\$70	Ξ	\$						
Public Agency		Х	68.93	-		Х	Exempt	=	\$						
Other Non-Residential (specify):		Х		=		Х	\$70	=	\$						

Exhibit 2: Regional Transportation Mitigation Fee Calculation Form

Cost per trip by land use type: Residential : \$396 Non-Residential \$70 Total Mitigation Fees Credits Applied Net Mitigation Fees

\$

\$

\$



5.0 Allocation of Funds

RTMF funds shall be distributed in accordance with Executive Committee actions, the most current Nexus Study, this Administrative Plan, and any future amendments thereto.

6.0 Administration of the RTMF

NCTC shall administer the RTMF Program as described in this Administrative Plan adopted by participating jurisdictions.

7.0 Administration of Credits

Each jurisdiction shall be responsible for the administration of RTMF credit agreements. Each jurisdiction shall transmit all RTMF credit agreements to NCTC within sixty (60) days of execution by that jurisdiction. NCTC may administer credit agreements upon written request from that jurisdiction. The credit agreements shall be in accordance with the following:

- A. Developer Credits Any RTMF credit shall be used first by the developer to offset any obligation of the developer to pay RTMF impact fees of the same development project.
 - Credits may not be transferred or sold to other development projects.
 - Developers must exhaust all credits before they are eligible for reimbursements.
 - Credits shall run with the sale of the land.

If a developer constructs improvements identified on the Regional System, the developer shall receive credit for all costs associated with the improvements based on approved project cost estimates for the Regional System.

The amount of the development fee credit shall not exceed the maximum amount determined by the most current project cost estimates for the Regional System, or actual costs, whichever is less. This shall be known as the maximum RTMF credit. The maximum RTMF credit shall be determined based on approved Improvement Plans and after Conditions of Approval have been determined. The maximum RTMF credit shall identify, at a minimum, the facility, the dimensions of the facility, the number of lanes, and applicable project cost estimates as identified in the adopted Nexus Study.

Should the NCTC Executive Committee determine that a jurisdiction granted credits exceeding the maximum RTMF credit, that jurisdiction shall provide NCTC payment in the amount equal to the excess credit amount.

8.0 Administration of Reimbursements

Local jurisdictions/agencies and developers are eligible for reimbursement for construction of RTMF facilities. The processes for both are different and are described below.

A. **Developer Reimbursements** - Each jurisdiction shall be responsible for the administration of reimbursement agreements.

Should the developer construct Regional System improvements in excess of the RTMF fee obligation, the developer may be reimbursed based on actual costs or the approved project cost estimates, whichever is less at the time of the agreement. A development that is exempt from paying the RTMF



is not eligible for a reimbursement. Reimbursements shall be made through an agreement between the developer and the local jurisdiction, and are contingent upon funds being available. In all cases, reimbursements under such agreements must coincide with construction of the transportation improvements as scheduled in the most current Five-Year Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) adopted by NCTC.

The developer may enter into a reimbursement agreement with the jurisdiction to reimburse the developer/owner for the direct and verifiable costs of constructing improvements to the Regional System when all of the following conditions are met:

- 1. All available credits are exhausted.
- 2. The improvements received prior approval from the jurisdiction and NCTC Executive Committee based on the review of the RTMF project priority list.
- 3. The jurisdiction and NCTC Executive Committee have reviewed and approved the scope of the project to be constructed.

n no event shall the developer be reimbursed for improvements to the Regional System in excess of the most current approved project cost estimates for the RTMF at the time of the agreement.

B. Local Jurisdictions/Agencies: In cases where a local jurisdiction constructs RTMF facilities, it is eligible for reimbursement up to the maximum share identified in the Nexus Study or actual cost whichever is less, in accordance with the prioritization schedule in the adopted TIP. Local jurisdictions are required to enter into a reimbursement agreement with NCTC in order to be eligible to receive RTMF funds from NCTC.

9.0 Administrative Responsibilities

A. Regional Administration - As set forth in Section 5 above, NCTC is designated as the RTMF Program Administrator. As Administrator, NCTC will receive all fees generated from the RTMF as collected by local jurisdictions. NCTC shall invest, account for and expend such fees in accordance with this Administrative Plan and applicable state laws. Exhibit 3 provides a flow chart of the administrative decision making process.



Exhibit 3: RTMF Decision Flowchart



- The NCTC Executive Director Reporting to the NCTC Executive Committee, the Executive Director shall be responsible for the following RTMF Program activities:
 - a. Administration of the RTMF Program, including development of credit agreements, fee collection process and processing Program appeals.
 - b. An independent fiscal audit conducted to report on the evidence that the expenditure of funds collected is in accordance with the Mitigation Fee Act. The audit shall be presented to the Executive Committee and made available to the public.
 - c. Establishment and management of the "RTMF Program Trust Fund" for the purposes of depositing RTMF revenues and income interest earned on Trust Fund deposits.
 - d. Preparation of an Annual Report for consideration by the Executive Committee detailing the status of the RTMF Program including, but not limited to, fees collected and disseminated; capital projects planned for, prioritized, and built; reimbursement and credit agreements; appeals; and recommendations for RTMF Program adjustments.
 - e. Preparation of periodic comprehensive RTMF Program review reports that provide, in concert with requirements of the California Mitigation Fee Act, an analysis of the RTMF Program, including review of the various Nexus Study inputs and assumptions, and preparation of recommendations on potential RTMF Program revisions for consideration by the Executive Committee. Such reports may include, but are not limited to recommended fee adjustments based on changes in the facilities required to be constructed, and revenues received pursuant to the Program.
 - f. Preparation of technical studies/analysis required to select and prioritize Regional System projects.
 - g. Development of a Strategic Plan that identifies long term planning goals and objectives for implementation of the RTMF Program.
 - h. Development of a Five-Year TIP that identifies projects that are scheduled and funded for construction over a specified period of time and is reviewed on an annual basis. See Appendix.
 - i. Other related activities as directed by the Executive Committee.
- 2. The NCTC Executive Committee The Executive Committee shall be comprised of one member of NCTC representing Nevada County and the NCTC members representing Grass Valley and Nevada City. The Executive Committee has final authority and shall be responsible for reviewing and acting on recommendations for project selection and prioritization of projects in the RTMF CIP, Strategic Plan, and the TIP. The Executive Committee shall review and consider recommendations on projects from the Administrative Committee (see #4 below) and the NCTC Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) (see #3 below). The Executive Committee shall also be responsible for approval of this Administrative Plan and any subsequent amendments thereto. From time to time the Executive Committee shall recommend changes to the Program for consideration by participating jurisdictions. All actions by the Executive Committee must be approved by all three members in order to be in force. If there is a dispute at the Executive Committee level regarding project prioritization of a specific project(s) and a consensus cannot



be reached, that project shall be tabled until such time as new information is presented and the matter can be resolved.

In developing recommendations on RTMF projects for consideration by the Executive Committee, NCTC staff and TAC shall work to coordinate compatibility with local project priorities and schedules of area transportation improvements.

- 3. **The NCTC TAC** The TAC shall review the technical documents and recommendations for RTMF projects. The TAC shall forward any recommendations to the Executive Committee for its consideration. The TAC shall also provide additional assistance to the RTMF Program as requested by the Executive Committee.
- 4. **The Administrative Committee** The Administrative Committee shall be comprised of the chief administrative officer, public works director or designee from the three participating jurisdictions, and NCTC's Executive Director. The Administrative Committee shall be responsible for the following:
 - a. Develop objective criteria for project selection and prioritization, including, but not limited to, the following factors: traffic safety issues potentially created by growth, regional significance, availability of matching funds, mitigation of congestion created by new development, system continuity, geographic balance, project readiness, and completed projects with reimbursement agreements.
 - b. Provide additional assistance to the RTMF Program as requested by the Executive Committee and/or the NCTC TAC.
 - c. Prepare the Strategic Plan.
 - d. Prepare the Five-Year TIP which will be reviewed annually.
 - e. Review and recommend changes in project priorities to the NCTC TAC and Executive Committee.
 - f. Select a lead agency for each of the projects in the CIP.
 - g. Review the Annual Report prepared by NCTC.
 - h. Review and revise the roadways in the Regional System as may be necessary (at a minimum every five years).
 - i. Review and revise Project Cost Estimates for the Regional System projects as may be necessary (at a minimum every five years).
- 5. RTMF Program Updates The NCTC Executive Committee shall undertake a review of all components of the RTMF Program in accordance with AB 1600 and other applicable laws, and, if necessary, recommend Program amendments and/or adjustments. Amendments to the Administrative Plan will be subject to the approval of the NCTC Executive Committee. Amendments required to the RTMF Program shall be approved by the three participating jurisdictions acting on recommendations provided by the Executive Committee. The review shall consider whether adjustments to future administration costs are needed. The RTMF program is subject to annual inflation adjustments, periodic updates, and five year comprehensive updates. The purpose of each update is described in this section.



a. Inflation Adjustment - The RTMF may, at NCTC's discretion, be adjusted to account for the inflation of construction, right-of-way acquisition, and design costs.

It is recommended that in March of each calendar year the RTMF should be reviewed and fee adjustments should be recommended by the TAC based on the average of the San Francisco Construction Cost Index as reported in the Engineering News Record 20-City Construction Cost Index for the 12 month period ending December of the prior year.

For right-of-way cost adjustments, it is recommended that NCTC utilize the "Existing Home Price Trend" compiled by the National Association of Realtors (NAR) to track the median sales price of existing single family homes in metropolitan markets across the country.

b. Periodic RTMF Update - The RTMF may, at NCTC's discretion, be subject to periodic updates based on changes in developable land, cost estimates, or outside funding sources. The TAC will periodically review the costs and fees to determine if any updates to the fees are warranted. During the periodic reviews, the TAC will analyze the following items:

- Changes to the required facilities listed in the Capital Improvement Program.
- Changes in the cost to update or administer the fee.
- Changes in costs greater than inflation.
- Changes in assumed land uses.
- Changes in other funding sources.

Any changes to the RTMF, based on a periodic update, will be presented to the Executive Committee for approval and recommendation to the cities and county.

During a periodic update, the Executive Committee may change the funding priority of a project. Such a change will be based on level of service evaluations, the location and timing of new development that will add significant housing, or jobs, or other considerations. RTMF revenues may be spent on any of the projects identified in the CIP without regard to the location of the project and the location of collected fees.

c. Five-Year Comprehensive Update - RTMF funds will be deposited, invested, and expended in accordance with Government Code Section 66006. The fifth year following the first deposit into the RTMF account or fund and every five (5) years thereafter, NCTC staff will provide the cities and county with information required to make all of the following findings with respect to that portion of the account or fund remaining unexpended:

- Identify the purpose for which the RTMF is to be used.
- Demonstrate a reasonable relationship between the fee and the purpose for which it is charged.
- Identify all sources and amounts of funding anticipated to complete financing of incomplete CIP projects.



• Designate the approximate dates that the RTMF funding referred to in the above paragraph is expected to be deposited in the appropriate account or fund.

The cities or county must refund the unexpended or uncommitted revenue portion of the RTMF for which a need cannot be demonstrated in the above findings, unless the administrative costs exceed the amount of the refund.

6. **Disposition of RTMF Revenues** - The fees that are paid to the County of Nevada and the cities of Grass Valley and Nevada City are to be deposited into a trust account for which the NCTC is the treasurer. The three local jurisdictions are then responsible for implementing and constructing the projects approved by the NCTC Executive Committee. They are to be reimbursed by NCTC for the cost incurred up to, but not to exceed, the project cost estimates in the approved CIP, upon submittal of valid invoices. A graphical illustration of the fee collection and disposition process is shown in Exhibit 4.



Exhibit 4: Flow of Mitigation Fees



- 7. Annual Program Accountability An annual report will be produced which will show the most current revenue balance for the RTMF Program, as well as provide a status of the Regional System projects to be constructed with the fee revenues. In addition, annual fiscal audits by an independent accounting firm are required by law to examine the fiscal responsibility of local governments. The NCTC is subject to an annual financial audit. The annual report and the annual financial audit will serve as the accountability mechanisms for the collection and use of the RTMF revenue.
- 8. **Program Termination** Upon termination of the RTMF program, any surplus money in the RTMF account shall be returned to Grass Valley, Nevada City, and Nevada County in proportion to the contributions made by each entity for use in mitigating the impacts of future growth.
- **B.** Local Administration The RTMF fee schedule will be adopted by Grass Valley, Nevada City, and Nevada County through ordinances authorizing collection of the RTMF, and through resolutions establishing the RTMF. The RTMF fee schedule will be effective no sooner than sixty (60) days following final action by each local agency on the ordinances authorizing collection of the RTMF, and on the resolutions establishing the RTMF. The RTMF. The local ordinances or resolutions should reference the inflation adjustment process discussed in this Administrative Plan.

The local jurisdictions are responsible for collecting the RTMF. Fees collected and a corresponding activity report are to be transmitted to the Executive Director of NCTC within thirty (30) days of the fiscal year quarter in which the fees were collected. In accordance with the Mitigation Fee Act, NCTC will deposit, invest, account for, and disburse the transmitted fees. Participating jurisdictions are required to transmit reports as set forth below to NCTC which shall include, but not be limited to, the following information regarding the RTMF Program status:

1. Quarterly Remittance/Activity Reports - Within thirty (30) days of the end of the quarter in which RTMF was collected, the participating jurisdiction shall submit the standard Remittance/Activity Report to NCTC containing information necessary for NCTC to determine the total amount of fees collected within each fee category as it relates to the number of building permits, certificates of occupancy, or final inspections issued during the same period of time. The information in the Remittance/Activity Report shall include: the name of the developer or payee, project address, APN, total square feet or number of dwelling units, credits issued, and such other information as requested by NCTC. This information will assist NCTC in tracking new development, total revenue received, and revenue projections for purposes of program audits and program updates. If an audit is required due to reporting and remittance irregularities, the jurisdiction will incur the cost of the audit.

10.0 Administrative Costs

The RTMF program includes the costs of program administration and comprehensive program updates. NCTC administration costs will be reimbursed on a time and material basis, but not to exceed \$10,000 per year. The total cost for comprehensive program updates during the life of the program has been set at \$400,000 or \$100,000 for each update.



11.0 Appeals

Appeals shall only be made in accordance with the provisions of this Section.

- A. Persons or Entities Who Have Standing to Appeal No person or entity shall have standing to avail themselves of this Section, except those persons or individuals who are responsible for paying the RTMF and have an unresolved appealable issue or matter.
- B. Appealable Issues and Matters No issue or matter shall be heard or reviewed under this Section 10 unless the issue or matter is appealable. An issue or matter is appealable if a qualified person or entity ("Appellant") has a good-faith dispute directly related to Appellant's Property ("RTMF Dispute") regarding (i) the amount of Appellant's RTMF obligation; (ii) the administration of RTMF Credits; (iii) exemption of Appellant's property from the RTMF Program; (iv) administration of RTMF reimbursements; or (v) RTMF refunds.
- C. Appeal Process. (see Exhibit 5)
 - 1. If an Appellant has a RTMF dispute, the Appellant shall first attempt to resolve the dispute with the staff of the local jurisdiction. If the RTMF dispute remains unresolved after a reasonable attempt to address it at the local level, the Appellant may submit a written appeal to the NCTC Executive Director. The written appeal shall clearly identify key issues in the RTMF dispute. The NCTC Executive Director shall present the matter to the Administrative Committee. If the Administrative Committee determines the issue or matter is not a RTMF dispute, the written appeal shall be rejected. The Administrative Committee's decision shall be provided in writing to the Appellant.
 - 2. If the Appellant desires further review and consideration, the Appellant must submit a written request for review to the NCTC Executive Director within five (5) days of receiving the Administrative Committee's written decision, and the RTMF dispute shall be presented to the NCTC Executive Committee within thirty (30) days of the receipt of the appeal.

At the conclusion of the thirty (30) day period, the Executive Committee shall render a written decision on the appeal. The decision of the Executive Committee shall be final.



Exhibit 5: RTMF Appeals Flowchart



12.0 CEQA

The RTMF Program currently is a financing mechanism dependent on future actions of the NCTC Executive Committee for improvements to the Regional System. The NCTC Executive Committee and its associated committees will be prioritizing and scheduling improvements on the Regional System, and the appropriate environmental documentation shall be completed before a project can commence construction.

The RTMF Program was developed to mitigate the cumulative impacts of future growth on the Regional System. It was not developed to mitigate project-specific traffic impacts. Accordingly, the program does not relieve any development project of the responsibility to mitigate project-specific impacts identified in the environmental analysis prepared for the project. When a development project is required to construct Regional System facilities as project-specific mitigation, it shall be eligible for credit and/or reimbursement.



Appendix: Guidelines for Administration of Programmed Projects in the Adopted Five-Year Transportation Improvement Program

Once a Five-Year TIP is adopted by the Executive Committee, said TIPs shall be incorporated into and governed by these guidelines, the Administrative Plan, and Strategic Plan in accordance with AB 1600. NCTC staff should meet with the Technical Advisory Committee annually to review the status of all programmed projects on the Five-Year TIP and bring any project adjustment requests to the Executive Committees for approval. The goals of the annual review process are as follows:

- 1. To update project cost estimates.
- 2. To review project status.
- 3. To determine the continued viability of projects.
- 4. To review the backlog of reimbursement projects.
- 5. To address local jurisdiction issues.
- 6. To address compliance with AB 1600.

Adjustments:

In accordance with the TIP and the original reimbursement agreement entered into with the lead jurisdiction, all approved projects' funding and schedules are directly tied to critical milestones. As such, requests to change a project's funding or schedule shall necessitate an amendment to the original agreement and the adopted TIP.

Annual Five-Year TIP adjustments could include, but are not limited to:

- 1. Scope of work reductions or additions.
- 2. Project or phase delays.
- 3. Project or phase cancellations.
- 4. New shelf-ready network projects being added as replacement projects.
- 5. Project or phase advances.

Levels of Approval:

A. Executive Committee

The following shall be approved and adopted by the Executive Committee as required in the Administrative Plan:

- 1. Annual updates to the TIP.
- 2. Requests to increase total RTMF funding allocations to projects in the TIP. These requests may be made by the local jurisdiction administratively outside of the annual TIP update cycles if deemed necessary by one of the participating jurisdictions and NCTC management due to unforeseen circumstances that necessitate immediate action. Such unforeseen circumstances shall include, but not be limited to, higher than expected bid prices. NCTC staff will obtain action



from the Executive Committee in these cases either by calling for a Special Executive Committee meeting or through individual consultation.

- Administrative requests to advance funds or adjust project schedules on TIP approved projects, upon the recommendation of the Administrative Committee. Such advancements are subject to:
 - Jurisdiction's proof of readiness to move forward with project.
 - RTMF current cash flow can support the advancement or change.

B. NCTC Executive Director

The NCTC Executive Director shall be responsible for the review and approval of the following changes to an approved TIP, including the review and approval of any agreements, for:

- 1. Change in lead jurisdiction, with the written consent of both the transferring and accepting lead jurisdiction.
- Cancellation of project upon request of the local jurisdiction. In the event of cancellation, all RTMF funds programmed to said project shall revert to the RTMF Trust Account.
- Approval of final completion of the project. Upon notification from the jurisdiction that the Project has been completed, all unused funds programmed for that Project shall revert to the RTMF Trust Account.
- 4. All other administrative requests, upon consultation with the Administrative Committee.

C. Administrative Committee

The Administrative Committee shall be responsible for the review and approval of the following:

- 1. Requests to move funds within project categories (environmental, design, etc.) administratively, contingent upon participating jurisdiction's certification of viability of all phases.
- 2. Provide recommendations to the NCTC Executive Director on any other requests that are deemed administrative in nature by the Executive Director.

All administrative adjustments will be submitted to the Executive Committee as part of the next Annual Review Report for final adoption.

D. Obligating Programmed Funds

The RTMF Program has established the policy that construction projects take priority, and therefore NCTC limits the obligation of RTMF dollars. NCTC has two options by which to obligate RTMF. In both options, steps 1, 2 and 3 (Option A) or 6 (Option B) must be completed by the local jurisdiction to ensure RTMF funding can be made available for use on an eligible project. Since RTMF project funds are generally obligated on a first come first served basis, failure to follow the prescribed steps for either option may preclude a project sponsor from receiving RTMF payments for completed work until sufficient funds are available to be obligated.



Option A

Funding for a project programmed in the Five-Year TIP is not considered obligated by NCTC until certain steps outlined below have been accomplished by the local jurisdiction.

- 1. Ensure that funding for the project phase is **programmed in the current year** of an adopted Five-Year TIP.
- 2. Ensure that there is a <u>signed (executed) reimbursement agreement</u> that matches the funding amount with the funding amount of the project phase in the adopted TIP.
- 3. Submit <u>an invoice for RTMF eligible work</u> prior to the end of the fiscal year to obligate the project phase funding. At the time of submitting the first invoice, the project sponsor will be required to submit all necessary supporting documentation (not previously submitted) in accordance with the provisions of the reimbursement agreement.
- 4. NCTC will obligate the entire phase of the project if there is available revenue at the time the invoice is submitted.

Option B

Funding for a project programmed in the Five-Year TIP is not considered obligated by NCTC until the steps outlined below have been accomplished by the local jurisdiction.

- 1. Ensure that funding for the project phase is **programmed in the current year** of an adopted Five-Year TIP.
- 2. Ensure that there is a <u>signed (executed) reimbursement agreement</u> that matches the funding amount with the funding amount of the project phase in the adopted TIP.
- 3. Send NCTC a letter of <u>notice of intent</u> to issue RFP, solicit bids, make offer to purchase ROW or other similar action to verify that sufficient funding is available and that funds are obligated and reserved exclusively for the particular project phase.
- 4. Receive a <u>notice of obligation</u> from NCTC within fourteen (14) working days of receipt of the notice of intent confirming the amount of funding that is obligated and reserved exclusively for the particular project phase. Alternatively, the project sponsor will receive a <u>notice of deferred obligation</u> if NCTC determines that insufficient funds are available for the project phase to be obligated.
- 5. Award the project and execute a contract within four (4) months of receipt of the notice of obligation from NCTC, and send a letter of <u>confirmation of award</u> to NCTC, including evidence of a Board/Council action relating to the project award and contract execution.
- 6. Commence project work and submit the <u>first invoice</u> for payment within nine (9) months of receipt of letter of obligation by NCTC to preserve fund obligation. At the time of submitting the first invoice, the project sponsor will be required to submit all necessary supporting documentation (not previously submitted) in accordance with the provisions of the reimbursement agreement.



If a contract has not been executed within four (4) months of receipt of the notice of obligation from NCTC (step 5), there will be a review of the project status. Based on the review of project status, NCTC will either:

- 1. Extend the fund obligation for up to a total of nine (9) months from the notice of obligation if the project sponsor can demonstrate a realistic expectation that the project will be awarded and a confirmation of award can be provided to NCTC within that time frame; or
- 2. De-obligate the funds.

Similarly, if the first invoice has not been submitted to NCTC within nine (9) months of receipt of the letter of obligation (step 6), there will be a review of the project status. Based on the review of project status, NCTC will either:

- 1. Extend the fund obligation for up to an additional nine (9) months if the project sponsor can demonstrate a realistic expectation that the project work will commence and a first invoice is submitted within that time frame; or
- 2. De-obligate the funds.

Project Priorities and Expenditure Plans:

Setting project priorities and establishing an Expenditure Plan are two critical steps necessary in implementing a mitigation fee program. In Exhibit 6, "RTMF Capital Improvement Program", there is a column titled "Funding Priority" where NCTC will record project priorities once they are adopted.

Exhibit 7, "RTMF Expenditure Plan" will be based on the project priorities in Exhibit 6 and an assumed revenue generation across the twenty years of the program, with 30% of the funding from the fee collections set aside for repayment of the bonds issued for the Dorsey Drive Interchange project. Once the project priorities have been adopted by NCTC they will be used to allocated the funding available for other projects on a year-by-year basis. The project priorities used in the Expenditure Plan can only be changed by unanimous vote of the NCTC Executive Committee.

RTMF 2016 Administrative Plan

NETC

Funding Priority (to be determined)														
Costs Attributable to New Development	$(C) = (A)^{*}(B)$	\$7,991,555	\$4,005,587	\$3.862.597	\$5,089,431	\$500.432	\$1.380.043	\$350.227	\$233.760	\$1.500.000	\$1.033.842	\$119.288	\$425,560	\$26,492,323
% of Need Attributable to New Development	(B)	33%	12%	3%	64%	32%	100%	52%	21%	100%	100%	34%	100%	
Updated Cost Estimate	(A)	\$24,000,000	\$33,417,273	\$123,414,693	\$8,000,000	\$1,556,515	\$1,380,043	\$670,000	\$1,088,655	\$1,500,000	\$1,033,842	\$350,000		\$196,411,021
Segment		Dorsey Drive	S/o La Barr Meadows Rd (SB)	South of Alta Sierra Dr (SB)	@ McKnight Way	@ McCourtney Rd	@ Idaho Maryland Rd	@ Ridge Rd/Gold Flat Rd	@ Uren St	@ Bennett St/Richardson St	@ SR-20/49 NB Ramps	@ Coyote St	ar reviews	
Facility		SR-49 Interchange	SR-49	SR-49	SR-49 NB & SB Ramps	SR 20 EB Ramps	SR 20/49 NB Ramps	SR 20/49 SB Ramps	SR 20/SR 49	E.Main St	South Auburn St	SR-49	Admin Costs and 5-yea	Total
D		-	2	e	4	5	9	7	00	0	10	11	12	

Exhibit 6: RTMF Capital Improvement Program

October 31, 2016

21





		1																					
Project(s)			#1 Dorsev Drive bonds	#1 Dorsey Drive bonds	#1 Dorsev Drive bonds	#1 Dorsev Drive bonds	#1 Darsev Drive bonde	#1 Dorsev Drive honds	#1 Doreav Drive bonde	#1 Dorsev Drive honds	#1 Dorsev Drive bonds								-				
Balance of Funding Available for All Other Projects	(F)=Previous(F)+(A)-(E)	\$202.505	\$940.701	\$1.678.897	\$2,417,093	\$3,155,289	\$3.893.484	\$4,631,680	\$5.369.876	\$6.108.072	\$7.114.731	\$8.169.297	\$9.223.862	\$10.278.428	\$11.332.993	\$12.387.559	\$13,442,124	\$14,496,690	\$15.551.255	\$16.605.821	\$17,660.387	\$18.714.952	
Expense	(E)		\$316,370	\$316.370	\$316.370	\$316,370	\$316,370	\$316.370	\$316.370	\$316,370	\$47.907	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	\$0	20	\$0	\$0	
Share of Revenue for Other Projects	(D)=(A)-(B)		\$738,196	\$738,196	\$738,196	\$738, 196	\$738,196	\$738,196	\$738, 196	\$738,196	\$1,006,659	\$1,054,566	\$1.054,566	\$1,054,566	\$1,054,566	\$1,054,566	\$1,054,566	\$1,054,566	\$1,054,566	\$1.054,566	\$1,054,566	\$1,054,566	\$18,512,447
Cumulative Funding for Dorsey Drive	(C) = Previous(C) + (B)	\$21,421,136	\$21,737,506	\$22,053,875	\$22,370,245	\$22,686,615	\$23,002,984	\$23,319,354	\$23,635,724	\$23,952,093	\$24,000,000												
Share of Revenue for Dorsey Drive (30% until bonds are paid off)	(B)		\$316,370	\$316,370	\$316,370	\$316,370	\$316,370	\$316,370	\$316,370	\$316,370	\$47,907										-		\$2,578,864
Anticipated Revenue	(A)		\$1,054,566	\$1,054,566	\$1.054,566	\$1,054,566	\$1,054,566	\$1,054,566	\$1,054,566	\$1,054,566	\$1.054.566	\$1,054,566	\$1,054,566	\$1,054,566	\$1,054,566	\$1,054,566	\$1,054,566	\$1,054,566	\$1,054,566	\$1,054,566	\$1,054,566	\$1,054,566	\$21,091,311
Fiscal Year		Jul-16	2017/18	2018/19	2019/20	2020/21	2021/22	2022/23	2023/24	2024/25	2025/26	2026/27	2027/28	2028/29	2029/30	2030/31	2031/32	2032/33	2033/34	2034/35	2035/36	2036/37	Total

Exhibit 7: RTMF Expenditure Plan

Octaber 31, 2016

22

